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RXH
YUEN MAN YING
ZF/Z Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries, |
hereby present to you the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

At more than two years after the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group resumed with Hong Kong's first outbound package tour to
Japan on 22 June 2022, contributing to enhance the Group’s financial
performance. Thereafter, with gradual relaxation of arrival quarantine
measures in Hong Kong, the public has re-ignited enthusiasm for
outbound travel, which enhanced significantly the Group’s results.
During the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$196.5 million (2021: HK$44.6 million), representing a significant
increase of 340.8% compared with last year, and the gross profit
amounted to approximately HK$38.9 million (2021: gross loss
amounted to approximately HK$29.2 million), representing a change
of 233.3% from gross loss to gross profit. During the Year, loss
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$74.3
million (2021: HK$155.6 million), representing a decrease by 52.3%
compared with last year. For the details of our business performance,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 12 to 25 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
Year (2021: HKSNIl).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first half of 2022, tourism business globally began to revive,
however, in Hong Kong the fifth wave outbreak of the pandemic
exploded in early 2022 and the Hong Kong Government had to
suspend most economic activities. This dealt another blow to
the recovery of the struggling tourism industry. During this time
of turmoil, the Group’s supplementary income source was from
newly launched “EGL Market” business, local tours, Staycation
accommodation and other products. Recovery occurred in June
2022, when the Group resumed with the first outbound package
tour from Hong Kong to Japan since the pandemic outbreak. On
arrival in Japan, this first package tour attracted the local media,
reporting daily on the tour group’s modes of consumption and
activities, and was the topic of interest at the time. Thereafter,
the Group continued to launch other outbound package tours
which were still very popular, despite the 7 day hotel quarantine
measures on arrival back to Hong Kong. We appreciated our
customers’ patronage. During their hotel quarantine period on
returning to Hong Kong, the Group would send each customer a
gift box that is provided by “EGL Market” with fresh fruits direct
from six different origination localities and snacks which are
individually wrapped for hygiene, for their daily enjoyment. Our
customers were delighted with the gifts. SMS messages were sent
to their tour guides to express their appreciation of the Group’s
caring arrangements.

In August 2022, the Hong Kong Government adjusted the inbound
quarantine measures by implementing the “3+4” quarantine
model, which means that people arriving in Hong Kong would
stay in a designated quarantine hotel for three days for mandatory
quarantine, and then for four days of medical surveillance at home.
One month later, the Hong Kong Government further relaxed the
regulations by changing to the “0+3” quarantine arrangement upon
arrival, which means that there is no mandatory hotel quarantine
and only three days of medical surveillance is required. This made
the Hong Kong outbound travel market active. In mid-October
2022, the Group was endowed with another piece of good news:
Hong Kong travellers could visit Japan on a visa-free basis, so
the Group’s businesses including visa-free traveller packages in
Japan, self-drive tours, Japan train passes and theme park tickets
also started to grow. To anticipate demand during the Christmas
and New Year holidays, the Group collaborated with Japan Airlines
to contract additional chartered flights on 24 and 29 December
2022 respectively, with a total of approximately 360 passenger
seats for direct flights from Hong Kong to Sapporo, Hokkaido, with
the Group being the first travel agency in Hong Kong to contract
chartered flights to Japan after the outbreak of the pandemic.
Apart from Japan, the Group’s outbound travel business to other
destinations also recovered gradually during the Christmas peak
season.

2022463  Annual Report 2022 007
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For our sale of merchandises business, the people of Hong Kong
have assumed a new consumption pattern due to the pandemic.
Online shopping has become part of their daily life, thus boosting
the turnover of “EGL Market”. In addition, “EGL Market” has set
up sales outlets within or next to our travel agency branches in
Tsuen Wan, Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui respectively, so as
to utilize resources more efficiently and enhance synergy.

For our hotel business, although the Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot
Spring Hotel had already started its operation during December
2020, the opening ceremony was postponed to December 2022
due to the pandemic. For the grand opening, the Group invited
our staff, Hong Kong media and internet celebrities, partners and
guests to attend the event. After personal experience at the hotel
and nearby tourist spots, the media upon return to Hong Kong
have profusely published reports to introduce and recommend
about the hotel. We believe that the two hotels of the Group, with
their excellent locations and unique quality services, will attract
more travellers and satisfactorily contribute to the Group’s financial
position.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

With the outbreak of the fifth wave of the pandemic in Hong
Kong in early 2022, the Group carried out thorough cleaning and
disinfection for all offices and stores. In addition, the Group also
introduced measures such as flexible working hours and working
from home to reduce the health risks faced by our staff. At the
same time, the Group also provided rapid test kits to staff for
the protection of staff and customer health. Our management
cared for those staff who were confirmed COVID-19 cases. They
purchased nutritional supplements helping to strengthen the
staff’'s immune system against the virus and to speed up recovery.
Management also wrote personal get-well cards to cheer up the
infected staff.
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For continual support towards environmental protection, in March
2022, the Group participated in the “Earth Hour”
which was organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature,

campaign

encouraging our staff to turn off non-essential lights and power-
consuming products for one hour in order to promote electrical
power management and reduce energy consumption. During
the campaign, staff members signed a pledge to support the
“Earth Hour”
the ecological environment. Moreover, the Group collaborated

campaign and contribute to the improvement of

with the “Green Community” programme which is organised
by the Environmental Protection Department, to implement a
recycling programme, and arranged for a designated recycling
contractor on the Environmental Protection Department’s register
to ecologically destroy hundreds of boxes of expired documents,
thus freed up storage space in warehouses and also contributed
to environmental protection. On the other hand, in addition to
disseminating environmental protection information in our internal
newsletters, the Group also strengthened our staff's awareness
of environmental protection and waste reduction in our daily life
by recycling cartons, waste paper and plastic. In September
2022, the Group invited the Public Environmental Education
Activities Team UMBIRMRE A EBIAH) of the “Green Community”
programme to host a talk on environmental protection, explaining
the importance of waste paper recycling and matters for
attention, as well as to give instructions to staff how to make eco-
friendly mosquito cream with natural ingredients, promoting the

enthusiasm of staff for environmental protection.

The Group also makes every effort to give back to our community
by helping people with different needs. In July 2022, the Group
together with the “CNEC Kei Shek Social Service Centre” (FHZE (&
BEEREAHZRF D), served to deliver supplies to grassroot
families and the elderly living alone. The Group’s staff not only
participated in the event with their families, but also arranged,
packed and transported the supplies on their own initiative,
as well as offered their best wishes to the needy, with mutual
encouragement during the pandemic.

20224E%%  Annual Report 2022 009
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

As Hong Kong enters a new post-pandemic phase with full
re-opening of borders between Hong Kong and overseas as well
as the Mainland China, the lifting of isolation orders and entry-
exit quarantine measures, the Group will be cautiously optimistic
in increasing our human resources and outlet network, optimizing
sales management, booking and contracting aircraft seats to
maintain our competitive edge. In addition, the Group will continue
to explore strategic partners and development opportunities to
seize any opportunity to expand our business and broaden our
sources of revenue.

I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to shareholders,
customers, business partners, the management and all staff
for moving forward together amidst the pandemic, upholding
confidence and offering support to the Group. The Group will
continue to hold tight to our roles in our community, to provide our
travellers with pleasant tours and continue to improve our financial
performance in the foreseeable future.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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GROUP OVERVIEW

With the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, most
of the Group’s travel related business and hotel business were
halted, especially in the first half of 2022. Fortunately, the Group
was able to organise Hong Kong’s first package tour to Japan
on 22 June 2022 after more than two years of the COVID-19
pandemic outbreak and since then the Group’s travel related
business gradually regained the momentum. In the second half
of 2022, the quarantine requirements imposed by the Hong
Kong Government began to loosen up, as such revenue from the
travel related business sector increased, causing an improvement
of the Group’s financial performance. Moreover, the Japanese
Government gradually reopened to inbound tourists in May 2022
and had further relaxed restrictions in the subsequent months.
Such arrangements had favourable impacts on the Group’s hotel
business sector.

During the Year, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$196.5 million (2021: HK$44.6 million), representing an
increase of 340.8%. Gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$38.9 million (2021: gross loss HK$29.2 million), representing
a change of 233.3%. Loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$74.3 million (2021: HK$155.6
million), representing a decrease of 52.3%.

Basic loss per share for loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 was HK14.79
cents (2021: HK30.98 cents).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

RITE - BEHRITES #B)  The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package
MRITHEMER KRB EERIEE > URES -BE

tours, FIT Products, ancillary travel related products and services

and sale of merchandises as well as the ownership, development
and management of hotel business.

for the years are set out as follows:

Revenue and gross profit/(loss) from various business categories

2022 2021
EF % (§)
kw8 ERE W g EFE
Gross Gross Gross Gross
profit/ profit (loss)/ profit
Revenue (loss)  margin  Revenue profit margin
TAT TExT Bk FTExX FExT  BHH
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$000 %
&4T Package tours 108,331 28,863 26.6 7,734 1,549 20.0
B BT E & BB kT FIT Products and ancillary travel
BRERRRE related products and services 19,359 8,951 46.2 5,234 3,386 64.7
il & Sale of merchandises 20,936 6,215 29.7 17,504 3,973 22.7
HABEEREK Hotel room rental and
AN AR ancillary services 47,853 (5,148) -10.8 14,106 (38,085  -270.0
1t Total 196,479 38,881 19.8 44,578 (29,177) -65.5
20224E% Annual Report 2022 013
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PACKAGE TOURS

Due to the relaxation of the quarantine requirements in Hong
Kong and the gradual reopening of the Japan to tourists in the
second half of 2022, financial performance of package tours
has been significantly improved. Revenue for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$108.3 million (2021: HK$7.7 million),
representing an increase of 1,300.7% and contributing 55.1% to
the Group’s total revenue (2021: 17.3%). Gross profit amounted
to approximately HK$28.9 million (2021: HK$1.5 million),
representing an increase of 1,763.3%.

FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, overseas local tours and transportation rental
services, and commission income from travel insurance services.

Benefited from Hong Kong'’s relaxed quarantine requirements and
increasing number of countries and areas lifting travel restrictions
and measures, financial performance of FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and services has been much improved.
Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$19.4 million
(2021: HK$5.2 million), representing an increase of 269.9% and
contributing 9.9% to the Group’s total revenue (2021: 11.7%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$9.0 million (2021:
HK$3.4 million), representing an increase of 164.4%.
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SALE OF MERCHANDISES

In 2020, the Group launched a brand-new online shopping
platform, “EGL market”, where souvenir product items around the
world are available for customer self-pickup and delivery services.
In 2021 and 2022, brick-and-mortar retail shops were opened and
pop-up shops had been operated. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had retail shops in Tsuen Wan, Causeway Bay and Tsim

Sha Tsui for the sale of merchandises business.

Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$20.9 million
(2021: HK$17.5 million), representing an increase of 19.6% and
39.3%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$6.2 million (2021:

contributing 10.7% to the Group’s total revenue (2021:
HK$4.0 million), representing an increase of 56.4%.

HOTEL ROOM RENTAL AND ANCILLARY SERVICES

The Japanese Government proceeded with the planned gradual
reopening to inbound tourists in May 2022, and then allowed
travellers from most areas, including Hong Kong, to visit Japan
without visa in October 2022. Such reopening has favourable
impacts on the Group’s hotel business.

Osaka Hinode Hotel, commenced its
operation since November 2017.

the Group’s first hotel,
It provides quality hospitality
services for guests from all over the world and has a capacity of
354 rooms for 691 guests with a hot spring bath building adjacent
to it. The hotel’s occupancy rate rose up to 87.8% for the month
of December 2022 and the average occupancy rate for the Year
was 33.1% (2021: 1.0%).

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, the Group’s second
hotel, commenced its operation since December 2020. It provides
quality hospitality services for guests from all over the world and
has a capacity of 201 rooms for 480 guests with the facilities
ranging from outdoor hot spring to swimming pool. The hotel’s
occupancy rate rose up to 69.2% for the month of December
2022 and the average occupancy rate for the Year was 46.4%
(2021: 23.2%).
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Revenue from hotel operation mainly represents income generated
from the letting of hotel rooms. The revenue for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$47.9 million (2021: HK$14.1 million),
representing an increase of 239.2% and contributing 24.4% to
the Group’s total revenue (2021: 31.6%). Gross loss amounted
to approximately HK$5.1 million (2021: HK$38.1 million),
representing a decrease of 86.5%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

FEHELE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2022 2021

EF|E Gross profit margin 19.8% -65.5%
EF]EEO Operating profit margin -35.4% -413.8%
B F =) Net profit margin @ -37.8% -349.1%
FEEEZRO Interest coverage ratio -3.1 f&times -12.4 f&times
B EDIERE Return on total assets @ -8.2% -17.2%
ZiN/NETEZ Z= N Return on equity attributable to

FE Ak 48 7 [0l R @ owners of the Company @ -321.7% -125.6%
TRENEEE Current ratio 0.7 f&time 0.6 f&time
BRRLEE Gearing ratio

HERRUREE Total borrowings over total assets 75.1% 76.6%

FPEFRURRE D Net debts over equity 2,234.2% 493.0%

o ERABENEE LIEMERARRER R ER, B

e

@ GEFEERSE LIERATERS NEGER B
e

O BEGIESZUNAFEIRMRARE (2021F : T8

7o) °

W K EF
P2RLEXTEEENRRAS T - XBRE DA
A& B W K EF RIS ©
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m Profit/loss in calculation refers to the profit/loss before finance costs
and taxation.

@ Profit/loss in calculation refers to the profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

© The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2021: HK$NIil).

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview” above.
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SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline staff costs contributed the majority of selling expenses of
the Group. Selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$37.1
million (2021: HK$29.1 million), representing an increase of 27.7%.
The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in number
and costs of frontline staff which was in line with the increase in
revenue.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, rent, rates and
management fee, utilities expenses of hotels and depreciation
on property, plant and equipment contributed the majority of
administrative expenses of the Group. Administrative expenses
HK$103.6

The decrease was

amounted to approximately HK$100.6 million (2021:
million), representing a decrease of 2.8%.
primarily contributed by the Group’s cost saving actions, including

no-pay leaves, salary reductions and manpower re-structuring.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$0.8 million. In 2021,
approximately HK$33.5 million which were mainly attributable to

these expenses amounted to

the written off of prepayments for booking aircraft seats with an
airline. The reversal of written off of such prepayments in 2022 was
recorded in “other income, gains and losses, net”.
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FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs of approximately HK$4.1 million (2021: HK$4.7
million) was incurred for the Year on the bank borrowings which
were used to finance the construction and decoration of hotel
buildings and hot spring bath building, acquisition of travel buses
and daily operations of travel related business.

Based on discounted cash flows of the loans from a related
company, Great Port, finance costs of approximately HK$17.0
million (2021: HK$7.8 million) were incurred for the Year. Such
finance costs increased as the amount of loans and the effective
interest rates increased.

Following the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”, finance costs of
approximately HK$1.3 million (2021: HK$1.9 million) were incurred
for the Year on lease liabilities.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Income tax credit for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$16.7 million (2021: HK$42.9 million). The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in deferred tax credit.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio for the Year was -3.1 times (2021: -12.4
times). The decrease in negative interest coverage ratio was mainly
attributable to the decrease in operating loss before finance costs
and taxation being greater than the increase in finance costs.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

For the changes in gross profit margin, operating profit margin
and net profit margin, please refer to the factors already discussed
above.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio was 0.7 time
(as at 31 December 2021: 0.6 time). The slight increase was
mainly attributable to the percentage of increase in current assets
being greater than the percentage of increase in current liabilities.
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G2 GEARING RATIO
1%,/
(R
Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease)
FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR — B ER Gearing ratio - Total borrowings
BEEE over total assets
RITER Bank borrowings 365,366 420,118 (54,752)
BENBER Loans from a related company 313,918 272,874 41,044
WBIETR (Hfata) Total borrowings (note a) 679,284 692,992 (13,708)
mEE Total assets 905,056 905,115 (59)
AR Gearing ratio 75.1% 76.6% -1.5
EEP g
percentage
points
BRI R — B EFEBRLURERERE  Gearing ratio - Net debts over equity
WBIETR (Hfata) Total borrowings (note a) 679,284 692,992 (13,708)
HEAR Lease liabilities 40,998 47,902 (6,904)
HBER W) Total debts (note b) 720,282 740,894 (20,612)
B IRIT A REFREE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (204,300) (130,133) (74,167)
515,982 610,761 (94,779)
s (Hzte) Equity (note ¢) 23,095 123,897 (100,802)
BIRLEE Gearing ratio 2,234.2% 493.0% 1,741.2
EEP g
percentage
points
izt Notes:

@ MBERBERTERKMBATDER

() RBEFEFERTER BEQADNENKEEAR-

© KRERDBERMERRDER ABGERREHRE-

(@)  Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a related
company.

(b)  Total debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities.

(c) Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.
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The decrease in gearing ratio — total borrowings over total assets
was mainly attributable to the decrease in bank borrowings.

The increase in gearing ratio — net debts over equity was mainly
attributable to the decrease in equity.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company for the Year were -8.2% (2021: -17.2%) and
-321.7% (2021: —125.6%) respectively. The decrease in negative
return on total assets was mainly due to the decrease in loss
attributable to owners of the Company. The increase in negative
return on equity was mainly due to the decrease in equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Regarding the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed in
October 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately JPY2,838.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$167.4 million) (as at 31 December
2021: JPY2,837.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$190.5
million)). The repayment term is payable in 12 years.

For the construction of hot spring bath building in Osaka which
was completed in March 2019, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
JPY447.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$26.4 million)
(as at 31 December 2021: JPY446.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$30.0 million)). The repayment term is payable in
12 years.

With respect to the construction of Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot
Spring Hotel completed in October 2020, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately JPY2,686.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$158.5 million) (as at 31 December 2021: JPY2,800.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$188.1 million)). The repayment
term is payable in 26 years.
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With regard to the acquisition of five travel buses in 2017, the
carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately JPY52.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3.1 million) (as at 31 December 2021:
JPY51.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.5 million)). The
repayment term is payable in 5 years but the final repayment date
has been postponed to 31 July 2023.

In respect of the bank borrowings withdrawn in Hong Kong to
meet the needs of working capital for travel related business
operation, the carrying amount as at 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$10.0 million (as at 31 December 2021: HK$8.0
million). The repayment term is payable within 30 days.

Regarding the financial support from the related company, Great
Port, the carrying amount of five loans withdrawn within 2020
and 2021 amounted to approximately HK$283.9 million as at 31
December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: HK$272.9 million).
These loans are unsecured and repayable on 1 January 2026. In
addition, one further loan of HK$30.0 million was withdrawn on 2
June 2022 and outstanding as at 31 December 2022. This sixth
loan is unsecured and repayable on 31 May 2023. It was classified
as current liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$23.1 million (as at 31 December 2021: HK$123.9 million).
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash at banks and on
hand amounted to approximately HK$204.3 million (as at 31
December 2021: HK$130.1 million).
hand were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar accounting
77.8%),

Japanese Yen accounting for approximately 16.3% (as at 31

Cash at banks and on
for approximately 77.9% (as at 31 December 2021:
December 2021: 15.6%), Euro accounting for approximately 1.8%

(as at 31 December 2021:
for approximately 1.2% (as at 31 December 2021: 0.8%).

1.1%) and Macau Pataca accounting
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, property, plant and equipment of
Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, Osaka Hinode
Hotel together with the hot spring bath building, travel buses,
and certain pledged bank balances in Japan of approximately
HK$432.7 million in total (as at 31 December 2021: HK$500.3
million) were pledged for the bank borrowings in Japan as
mentioned in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review — Capital Structure, Liquidity and
Finance Resources”.

Also, as at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$8.1 million (as at 31 December
2021: HK$8.3 million). Excluding those pledged bank balances in
Japan mentioned above, majority of the pledged bank deposits
were pledged to certain licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau
to secure the bank borrowings withdrawn in Hong Kong and
letters of guarantees issued to certain third parties on behalf of
the Group. Together with corporate guarantee provided by the
Company and undertakings provided by the certain executive
Directors to maintain the control over the management and
business of the Group, the Group’s total guarantees amounted to
approximately HK$7.3 million (as at 31 December 2021: HK$14.0
million), which were mainly issued to the Group’s branch shop
landlords and suppliers, such as air transport association, airlines
and hotels in order to guarantee the Group’s trade payable
balances due to the suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on
assets as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$0.5 million (as at 31 December 2021: HK$0.8
million) to acquire property, plant and equipment in Hong Kong.

For future capital expenditures, the Group currently intends to
finance such expenses by existing internal resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December 2021: Nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of the Group (2021: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant investment held by the
Group (2021: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
one floating to fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank
in Japan to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk and cash
flow changes of its floating-rate bank borrowings. Other than
the aforesaid swap contract, the Group did not rely on hedging
arrangements. The Group had implemented foreign exchange risk
management procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The
procedures were established to prevent carrying excessive cash
palance in foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts
were limited to the corresponding costs of travel elements based
on estimated sales amount for one week, to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign
exchange risk management procedures is to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel
elements denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for one
week. The procedures do not allow us to exercise any judgement
over the future direction of foreign exchange fluctuation and are
strict procedural steps for our operational staff to follow. The
Group will review the procedures from time to time and make
appropriate changes when necessary. Other than the transactional
foreign currency exchange risk, assets and liabilities of the
group entities are mainly denominated in its respective functional
currency. The Group’s treasury management policy is to place
surplus cash into bank deposits with licensed banks in mainly
Hong Kong, Macau and Japan. Also, working capital are centrally
managed to ensure proper and efficient collection and deployment
of funds, and sufficient funds to settle liabilities when they fall due.
Net exchange loss of approximately HK$3.5 million was recorded
for the Year (2021: HK$2.7 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of
294 employees (as at 31 December 2021: 254), of which 56 (as
at 31 December 2021: 22) were full-time tour leaders and escort
guides. Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with
reference to the market information and individual performance
and will be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy
will be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group'’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. High potential staff will be groomed
and developed intensively according to the promotion plan
towards the management level. To attract and retain the suitable
personnel for the development of the Group, the Group has
adopted a share option scheme since November 2014. Pursuant
to the share option scheme, share options may be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. No
share options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or exercised during
the Year (2021: Nil). During 2020, 2021 and the Year, due to the
adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, no-pay leaves and
salary reductions have been arranged for employees. Manpower
has been re-structured. Other than that, there was no significant
change in the remuneration policies, bonus, share option scheme
and training scheme of the Group (2021: Nil).

OUR STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

During the peak of the epidemic, the Group kept more than 190
of its employees, which is more than 30% of its original total
workforce. By organising local tours and staycation packages, the
Group took this advantage to preserve travel agent branches and
had shown its commitment to the travel industry. As a result, when
the epidemic is gone, the Group will be a step ahead towards
recovery.
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Now, with the full resumption of cross-border travel, abolition
of isolation orders and entry-exit quarantine measures between
Hong Kong and the world, Hong Kong has entered into a new
stage of post-epidemic era. The management of the Group will
remain cautiously optimistic. The Group will seek new market
opportunities and experiment different strategies, financial
performance is anticipated to improve going forward. To carry out
future plans, as at 31 December 2022, the Group had increased
its workforce to a total of 294 employees, which is about 47% of
the total personnel before the epidemic struck, and is expected
to expand to more than 60% in 2023. Furthermore, the Group
will open a travel agent branch in Kowloon Bay very soon and will
have 6 branches in total in Hong Kong. As part of the Group’s
initiatives to improve flexibility of tour schedules and assure
availability of flight seats, on 24 and 29 December 2022, the
Group cooperated with Japan Airlines to secure special flights
from Hong Kong to Sapporo, Hokkaido. The Group believed that
these charter flight arrangements can enhance brand image and
bring in more sales as such will continue to be utilized.

In terms of sale of merchandises business, the Group believed
that accompanying “EGL Market” retail shops with travel agency
branches will make use of resources in an effective manner and
create synergies. On the date of this report, the Group has retail
shops in Tsuen Wan, Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui and Mongkok,
an additional retail shop will be available in Shatin. All of them are
alongside with travel agency branches. The Group will continue to
expand the sales network in the future.

The Group will monitor closely to evaluate the cash position and
explore additional sources of income. With the continuous financial
support from the related company, Great Port, the Board is of the
view that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations in 2023 and first half of 2024.

We are well-positioned in the market to provide quality services
and products. We are confident in Hong Kong’s economic
recovery and will strengthen ourselves to regain our momentum
step by step. Together with the Group’s dedicated professional
team and management, supporting customers, business partners
and stakeholders, the Group is confident in achieving performance
improvement in the years ahead.
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For the year ended 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
TAT THEL TAET TET TAER
ES Results HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
g Revenue
isgh) Package tours 108,331 7,734 216,246 1,467,725 1,496,863
BHTERNENYE FIT Products and ancillary travel
IRATAERI & S K AR related products and services 19,359 5,234 16,701 188,828 212,527
i E Sale of merchandises 20,936 17,504 7,418 - -
HHEE R B ka1 R Hotel room rental and ancillary services 47,853 14,106 9,406 71,775 67,224
196,479 44,578 249,771 1,728,328 1,776,614
£/ (8) Gross profit/(loss)
isgh Package tours 28,863 1,549 13,583 191,656 189,908
BHTERRENE FIT Products and ancillary travel
TR E R R R related products and services 8,951 3,386 10,341 68,770 75,461
EmiE Sale of merchandises 6,215 3,973 1,541 - -
HBBREE R RENLERY Hotel room rental and ancillary services (5,148) (38,085) (38,260) 15,959 21,009
38,881 (29,177) (12,795) 276,385 286,378
Hitt A i R EBEEE Other income, gains and losses, net 30,418 11,313 14,452 4,479 9,590
Y= UNSE Share of results of associates (238) (513) (1,053) 2,198 3,081
E=RuFES {557 Other operating expenses (818) (33,452) (1,277) - -
RRE R A RS A (Loss)/Profit before finance costs
(&518) /%7 and income tax (69,538) (184,479) (142,607) 18,790 36,857
TN Finance costs (22,658) (14,854) (6,992) (7,042) (3,913)
Frisiike Income tax credit 16,697 42,908 39,925 2,877 2,120
£E (518 /&7 (Loss)/Profit for the year (75,499) (156,425) (109,674) 14,625 35,064
FERER Loss/(Profit) attributable to
FEhER/ (a7 non-controlling interests 1,200 790 914 (624) (247)
AREHEBA (Loss)/Profit attributable to
FE1G (518) /&7 owners of the Company (74,299) (155,635) (108,760) 14,001 34,817
SREE Per share data
SR (58 /B (Loss)/Earnings per share
—ERRE#E (B - Basic and diluted (HK cents) (14.79) (30.98) (21.65) 2.79 6.93
g E Financial ratios
EHE Gross profit margin 19.8% -65.5% -5.1% 16.0% 16.1%
= plpE Operating profit margin® -35.4% -413.8% -57.1% 1.1% 2.1%
FHIZEe Net profit margin® -37.8% -349.1% -43.5% 0.8% 2.0%
FEBEZC Interest coverage ratio® -3.1f8times  -12.4f3times  -20.4fZtimes  2.7fZtimes  9.4{Etimes
185 o) X Return on total assets®? -8.2% -17.2% -10.3% 1.3% 3.8%
S Return on equity? -321.7% -125.6% -43.1% 4.0% 9.8%
RENLE Current ratio 0.71&time 0.6fZtime 0.713time  1.1f3times  1.3f3times
BIRLEE Gearing ratio
—BEDRUEEEY - Total borrowings over total assets®” 75.1% 76.6% 64.2% 34.1% 29.6%
—FEHRUBEERY - Net debts over equity 2,234.2% 493.0% 252.3% 66.9%  FEANA

026 =H= @il ARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Operating profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation.

Profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

Gearing ratio:

- Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a
related company

- Net debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities less cash at banks and on hand

- Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$Nil).
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As at 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
BENEE Assets and Liabilities HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
mEE Total assets 905,056 905,115 1,053,511 1,091,880 912,476
waf Total liabilities (884,587) (782,821)  (801,878)  (738,859)  (554,325)
T 4% Total equity 20,469 122,294 251,633 353,021 358,151
SFABEED Bank borrowings included in
RITER total liabilities (365,366)  (420,118)  (476,796)  (372,875)  (269,638)
FEABER Loans from a related company (313,918)  (272,874)  (200,000) - -
R e Total equity
RRBER A Equity attributable to
FE1GHE R owners of the Company 23,095 123,897 252,583 350,577 355,015
FEER R Non-controlling interests (2,626) (1,603) (950) 2,444 3,136

20,469 122,294 251,633 353,021 358,151
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=== %47 Package tours
e BHITESRREB S RITHERE SRR
FIT Products and ancillary travel related products and services
R4 E Sale of merchandises
m HTEEE R E REBIEBRTS Hotel room rental and ancillary services
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$Nil (2021: HK$NIl).




By

IR
Reportofthe Directors

ES =V o)

KEEBBEAFEZ2E2BURARIRERR
2022F12B31HZ EHM R EH N AFERFEIOE213
B EEMHFERR - BEENAEERTIRTARKE

BESFESEMAEERMARBIRE (2021 1 T8
70) °©
E$E]

REBRAFEZ EXBOBERAEBRKRERER Y
BALDBENEERFOEI0ENEFERS > UKRSE
13 16BN EBE T éﬁiﬁﬂﬁ EBHE RFE24E
SENEEEN AN T — R RBE I Do

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 213 of this
annual report. The Directors did not declare any dividend during
the Year and the Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the Year (2021: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 10 and the
sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview” on pages 13 to 16 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Our Strategies and Outlook” on pages
24 to 25 of this annual report respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may

affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

(i)

(i)

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations may be materially and adversely
affected by natural disasters, acts or threats of terrorism,
wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of contagious
diseases (including COVID-19) or other catastrophic events.
Such events may significantly and adversely affect customer
sentiments and demand for travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations to the affected destinations or
for travel activities in general. The occurrence and timing of
such events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group
and may have significant and adverse impact on its assets,
business operations and operating results, particularly if the
Group is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately
in the wake of any such event. Further description of the
impact of the COVID-19 on the Group’s operations are set
out in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements
and the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 10 and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 25 of
this annual report respectively.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or Macau
could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s products or
services and its overall business and operating results may
e materially and adversely affected.
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(i) CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAFAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in Japan,
which may adversely impact customer demand for travel
related products and services of the Group related to Japan
and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

(iv) HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAPAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel and Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel, which are located in Osaka and
Okinawa respectively, might face competition from other
accommodation options in Japan currently existing or which
may come into operation in the future. The success of the
Group’s hotels operation will depend on its ability to compete
in aspects such as room rates, quality of accommodation,
service level and convenience of location.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks
facing by the Group are set out in note 37 and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements and the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency
Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 23 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 26 to 29 and the sub-section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review”
on pages 16 to 24 of this annual report respectively. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the above sections
of this annual report and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules to be published at the same time as this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for
rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
26 to 29 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIST OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2022, details of the properties owned by the
Group are as follows:

R4 2 BaEE
Y ES3i BmE A
L% & EZEDTE AHREER (EHK) (ERHK) RERE
Approximate Approximate
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in Available Site Area Area Existing
Name Location the Property Rooms (sg.m.) (sq.m.) Use
KIREOFBIE BAKRA KRS 100% 354 1,602.07 9,883.83 IS
REEEZERA—TH
2% 13K2%33
Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-13 and 2-33, Hotel
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
BOTFEARR BAKRRA KRS 100% 16 266.01 1,008.33 BRA
RREEZEERA—TE
2E31 K2E32
Hinode Deep-water Hot Spring 2-31 and 2-32, Hot spring bath
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
HBEOF BRERER BAHREHET 100% 201 2,327.89 6,296.21 A
WE=TH

Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel

348-1+346~ 35052353-6
348-1, 346, 350 and 353-6,

3-Chome, Makishi,

Naha City, Okinawa, Japan

Hotel
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SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$Nil (2021: HK$NIil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

LA ER
HAERRERE
a2
Approximate
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
RAMER The largest supplier 8.2%
hAARMEEE LT Five largest suppliers in aggregate 23.8%

MEFMA HEEF HEEHMBANTABRES
FIMBEE A ABEEITRASWU LEZRER  RAEAFE
BEAERERAAATR HHEBEERED
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As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen
and Mr. Chan Kim Fai will retire from office and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 77 to
80 of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2023 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

() LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFANY

(kNS
5% R VN BE&TRE
REE e EER BaEL

Approximate %
of the Issued
Share Capital

Number of Shares
Held in

Name of Director Capacity the Company Total Interests of the Company
EXHEEE (TREE)) BmEBA 840,000 1,496,000 0.30%
Mr. Yuen Man Ying Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Yuen”) FofBa s 656,000
Interest of spouse (Brz£1) (Note 1)
BE2EE ((BEL) BmEBA 500,000 17,228,000 3.43%
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Huen”) RREGEZEN#ER 16,728,000
Interest of a controlled (Bt522) (Note 2)
corporation
RRHIEE (TREE)) BEEBA 7,216,000 7,216,000 1.44%
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Leung”)
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Approximate %
Number of Shares of the Issued
Held in Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity the Company Total Interests of the Company
FES4L (IFzt) Bm#EBA 656,000 1,496,000 0.30%
Ms. Lee Po Fun Beneficial owner
(‘Ms. Lee") BRI R 840,000
Interest of spouse (#fz£3) (Note 3)
BEELRE BmEBA 6,000 6,000 0.00%
Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon Beneficial owner
HtaE - Notes:
1) REEAZTLCLIZEHE HIEEZEHERBERK (1) Mr. Yuen was deemed to be interested in 656,000 ordinary

B EXVES > E%&%‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁé UrtFEREEZ
656,0008% Z @R DB RER o

Shares beneficially owned by Ms. Lee by virtue of his being
the spouse of Ms. Lee for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2) HERBLEEEE2EHHR) 5516,728,0008% (2)  The 16,728,000 Shares were held by Kwok Lai, which is
B&AR © wholly-owned by Mr. Huen directly.
B FTuTARKEZERMB WREFZERBER (8)  Ms. Lee was deemed to be interested in 840,000 Shares

BIEXVE  EWBRANRRLEFERERSZ
840,000/ B& 17 F#EB #E i o

beneficially owned by Mr. Yuen by virtue of her being the
spouse of Mr. Yuen for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.
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() AR EEGEER G ZIFE () LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMFANY

HHEEEERE I EE R

EEH4 HECEE SR 85 ALY BAE D

Total Number of Approximate %

Name of Shares Held in of Interest in

Associated the Associated the Associated

Name of Director ~ Corporation Capacity Corporation Corporation

RHE IREEIE KIS EFEMIIA 8,850 26.70%
Mr. Yuen Evergloss Founder of a discretionary trust (Wta#1) (Note 1)

|t IREEE REEGEZEN#E R 7,650 23.08%
Mr. Huen Evergloss Interest of a controlled corporation (Htz22) (Note 2)

REHE IREEIE BmEAA 3,300 9.95%

Mr. Leung Evergloss Beneficial owner

=it EEEE HEEEzZmAREREEA 9,150 27.60%

Ms. Lee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (H13#3) (Note 3)
& beneficial owner

REBEYL BEEE HEETzZmA 8,850 26.70%

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee Evergloss Beneﬁmary of a discretionary trust (B1zt4) (Note 4)
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Family 2014 TrustB9=5E A > fThe Yuen Family 2014
TrustBRAEEUEZFFTL T RZERBEBELZ L (9
RBREENHEN) BHEZHEARINEIEET

Bl (BBEEERL2ERR) A7 660RIEEEIER

e

9,150 B RE B IR R 1D 7 » FIIEE (Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limitedz 2 &M B A 5] FH8,8508 1% > Alpadis
Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustf952 5
AN FZELZ T HZELETmAZ— R FT300RBEEE
BROBHEZ T FABREB AT

F]EZ (Alpadis Trust (HK) LimitedZ 2 &M BAR) 5
8,850 2 iE B IR R 17 Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited?
The Yuen Family 2014 Trustt9 S 5E A c RIBBRZ A%
BErtRmAZz—o

ff ECRREEEE SN > 120226128318 i EEE 5]
RABRBTBRAEBRAATHETAABE EZE (E
EREBELHREEAIEXVE) ZkMm  BRERMDIEE
HEPEEAABIRIEES R EEAHEI52EBT
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Notes:

1. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, which is wholly-
owned by Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited being the trustee of The Yuen
Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen
whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee,
wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of
Mr. Yuen.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Huen directly.

3. Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
which is the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is one of
the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

4. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited which is the trustee of The
Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Yuen Ho Yee is one of the beneficiaries
of the trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFANY

(=R NG
BEEXAT BEITRA
RRAD M B S I=Radan

Approximate %
Total Number of of the Issued

Shares Held Share Capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity in the Company of the Company
REEIE EREAA 301,642,000 60.03%
Evergloss Beneficial owner

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited ZEEA 340,018,000 67.67%

Trustee

Alpadis Group Holding AG

REEGEENED

(#t52) (Note)

340,018,000 67.67%

Alain ESSEIVA

Wei Lee TEO

Dominik Philipp HEER

Krinya HEER

Interest of a controlled corporation

NREGFEENER
Interest of a controlled corporation

Interest of spouse

FofBryEm

RREGFEENER
Interest of a controlled corporation

BBV
Interest of spouse

(#t52) (Note)

340,018,000 67.67%
(H132) (Note)
340,018,000 67.67%
(H132) (Note)
340,018,000 67.67%
(H132) (Note)
340,018,000 67.67%

(#t52) (Note)
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BEE: %%340,018,000 K MmBIEHRBREEERFEZ
301,642,000/% 8% 1% > F|E1FH 219,352,000 % 15
R Yohki Ryokoh Limited (T Yohki 1) $575 219,024,000
BREG(D o 7R2022FE12B31H BREEEBHNER
Yohki B #E B #926.70% K2 £926.24%  F] B Kz Yohkitg
FHAlpadis Trust (HK) Limited2Z #7A > Alpadis Trust
(HK) Limited7s MIBE1ERIEEEZEEA  BI() The
Yuen Family 2014 Trust’ AREEDIUEEZFE= L
TRZERBEEZL BARTENBHEAN) BB
Zm AR BEIBEESE 5 &) The Happyyau Family
Trust> BEEBREEUEEFRBBEASZT/NRZ L
REE=IRANBEZTDARINNIEET-

720228 12H31H » Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited%
Alpadis Group Holding AGZ2E&WEB AT M
Alpadis Group Holding AGHAlain ESSEIVAST4E K
Dominik Philipp HEERZE 4 % Bl / £953.34% &
#340.60% ° A It > 1RIBE H KB E KRG HEXVES
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited * Alpadis Group Holding
AG~ Alain ESSEIVASL 4 KzDominik Philipp HEERJG
EWRAH340,018,000 K% (BIERESERT
B 22301,642,000 &%~ FERAH 219,352,000
R& B& 15 K YohkitE B 219,024,000/% f2 15) 5 #
#oWei Lee TEOZ T%Alain ESSEIVASLAE (R4
7£340,018,000/2 & 5 R ¥E B # 1) Z A8 o Krinya
HEER% £ ADominik Philipp HEER%E4E (I8 &R
340,018,0008& f& 19 B ) ZBCiE

b EXFRIEE YN 120225128310 IfEHM =
ERHEHIAT EFTHEQABRSTBRAERIN BE
RERG BB M PEE BREES RPAERASE
XVEBEFE2 /3N B8 2 X M A A B R B X i 88 B
SRR AARRIEESRPERAE 336{1 BYHEE
Z2ERM REMNEERRB ZEMERIKE o
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Note: These 340,018,000 Shares consist of 301,642,000 Shares
held by Evergloss, 19,352,000 Shares held by Likang and
19,024,000 Shares held by Yohki Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”).
As at 31 December 2022, Evergloss was owned as to
approximately 26.70% by Likang and approximately 26.24%
by Yohki. Both Likang and Yohki are wholly-owned by Alpadis
Trust (HK) Limited, which is the trustee of two discretionary
family trusts, namely (i) The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose discretionary
objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of
Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen; and (ii)
The Happyyau Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Yau Shui Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu King,
wife and an associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals.

As at 31 December 2022, Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Alpadis Group Holding AG which in turn was
owned as to approximately 53.34% by Mr. Alain ESSEIVA and
approximately 40.60% by Mr. Dominik Philipp HEER. As such,
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, Alpadis Group Holding AG, Mr. Alain
ESSEIVA and Mr. Dominik Philipp HEER were deemed to be
interested in 340,018,000 Shares (which comprised 301,642,000
Shares held by Evergloss, 19,352,000 Shares held by Likang and
19,024,000 Shares held by Yohki) by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.
Ms. Wei Lee TEO is a spouse of Mr. Alain ESSEIVA who has a
deemed interest of 340,018,000 Shares. Ms. Krinya HEER is a
spouse of Mr. Dominik Philipp HEER who has a deemed interest of
340,018,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there was no
other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors, other than independent
non-executive Directors, had an interest in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:

EHBME

Nature of Business

mME

Nature of Interest

mAcE Next81 Limited
Mr. Huen
g Next81 Limited
Mr. Leung

AREFEHIN LRATNZESFTE AR EREE
HURTEEBINZABDZEGHERR-

BREXFRBEEN AFEAREBEEENELEH
EFERNERENGF N B RFNERNES
(FEBEBIFIN RER T

HIE =)

Online shop Director

NS MEFZ2BREES

Online shop Alternate director to Mr. Huen

As the Board is independent of the board of the above mentioned
company, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of that
company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the Year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
Directors’ background, qualification, experience, duties and
responsibilities within the Group and comparing with market
conditions. The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme
as an incentive arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants

relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling

shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement

disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements

of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing

Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(0

On 11 March 2022, EGL Tours (as borrower) accepted the
further renewed and revised offer from a bank in respect
of the general banking facilities previously granted to,
and accepted by, EGL Tours in October 2018. Under the
renewed facility letter (the “2022 First Facility Letter”), the
general banking facilities (being an invoice financing loan,
bank guarantee and a revolving loan of up to HK$45,000,000
and corporate credit card of up to HK$1,500,000) in the
aggregate amount of HK$46,500,000 (collectively, the “2022
First Facilities”) were renewed. The 2022 First Facility Letter
was countersigned by the Company as a guarantor or
security provider.

Under the 2022 First Facility Letter, EGL Tours has
undertaken to the bank, among others, the following:

(@ any one of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
shall remain chairman or directors of EGL Tours and
maintain control over the management and business of
the group;

(b)  Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee shall at all
times collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, not less
than 45% beneficial shareholding of EGL Tours; and

(c) Evergloss shall at all times maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 51% beneficial shareholding in
the Company.

Pursuant to the 2022 First Facility Letter, the bank has
the overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2022 First Facilities.
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On 10 May 2022, EGL Tours (as borrower), the Company,
Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, each as
guarantor or security provider, accepted a revised offer from
a bank in respect of the general banking facilities previously
granted to, and accepted by, EGL Tours in May 2018. Under
the revised facility letter (the “2022 Second Facility Letter”),
the general banking facilities including but not limited to a
revolving loan facility (the “2022 Revolving Loan Facility”) and
corporate credit card(s) (the “2022 CCD”) in the aggregate
amount of HK$40,600,000 (collectively, the “2022 Second
Facilities”) were granted to EGL Tours. The 2022 Revolving
Loan Facility has no fixed term and is subject to periodic
review of the bank and the 2022 CCD is subject to the terms
and conditions issued by the bank’s card centre to EGL
Tours.

Under the 2022 Second Facility Letter, each of EGL Tours,
the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
has undertaken to the bank, among others, the following:

(@) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman
or director(s) of EGL Tours and the Company and
maintain control over the management and business
of EGL Tours and the Company;

(b) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, not less than 45%
beneficial shareholding in EGL Tours and the
Company; and

(c) the major operating account to be maintained in
the bank with new average bank balance of the
companies which includes EGL Tours, Great Port
(being a company controlled as to approximately
60.63% by Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and
Ms. Lee collectively) and the Company of not less
than HK$50,000,000.

The 2022 Second Facilities are subject to the bank’s
overriding right of repayment on demand and the bank’s
unrestricted discretion to cancel or suspend, or determine
whether or not to permit drawings in relation to the 2022
Second Facilities.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on 13 November
2014 which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of listing of the Shares (i.e. 28 November 2014),
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any affiliates; or any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture
partner, supplier of goods or services to the Group or any affiliates
or any employee thereof (the “Eligible Person”). The remuneration
committee of the Board shall review and/or approve the matters
relating to the Share Option Scheme.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares available
for issue under options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or other share option scheme adopted by the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue immediately following completion of the initial public offering
of the Company (but taking no account of any shares which may
be allotted or issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option (as defined in the prospectus of the Company dated
18 November 2014)), being 50,000,000 shares. The total number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each
Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 50,000,000 shares
representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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Details of the connected transactions entered into by, and/or
subsisted between, the Group and the connected persons of the
Company during the Year and which are not exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) 2022 EH=E (1) 2022 Tenancy Agreements
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Given that the leasing to the Group (as tenant) by Great Port
(as landlord) for the occupation or use of certain premises,
car parking spaces and advertising area under the lease
agreements all dated 23 December 2020 entered into
between the Group and Great Port, expired on 31 December
2021, the Group entered into the following five tenancy
agreements (collectively, the “2022 Tenancy Agreements”)
with Great Port on 26 November 2021 to renew the former
tenancies for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 (both days inclusive):

1aBI2020% HAREERE
HERENTAR e (FrR) B R#
Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2022 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental Use
g% ¥ iR
No.  Landlord Tenant
1, RET BT BENGEEBS3RRREEF10ARCE 45,816 5630008 AN EFEALEEES
122 E 151828 16182  218P15 (FBEFEMR BHR
PIBEPREEMLIEHE B#E)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car HK$563,000  Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, parking spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 on spaces and of signage areas for
2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, signage areas) advertising
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
2. RET BRBIRTH EENEEEESR R EER108BE 2,300 270008 4%
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, HK$27,000  Head office
Kowloon, Hong Kong
3 AEf RRERTH BENRARED-51H 5,531 870008  AIMEER/
HTAESE1223 4 556%F EEY]
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$87,000  Branch office and/or
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong multi-function room
Kong
4. REfT FRBMRTH BRNRARERS-51E T AE5E6AE 835 1300087 AIHEEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 HK$13,000  Branch office
Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
5 RET RRBMRTH (RF)  EPINBDEAER2-6B5: 3,460 388008MT AP EREEHE
ERAF BEAEH730-8043%101EME Bl
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP38,800  Macau office and call
Company Limited Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau centre
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Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by
Mr. Yuen as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to
approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately
9.95% and Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being
the Executive Directors. The aforesaid Executive Directors
together controlled approximately 60.63% voting power
of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of
the said Executive Directors and thus a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Tenancy
Agreements constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements. Details
of the 2022 Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 26 November 2021.

2023 Tenancy Agreements

Given that the five tenancy agreements all dated
26 November 2021 entered into between the Group and
Great Port in relation to the granting of tenancies to the
Group for the use of certain premises, car park spaces
and advertising areas expired on 31 December 2022, on
25 November 2022, the Group entered into the following
five tenancy agreements (collectively, the “2023 Tenancy
Agreements”) with Great Port to renew the former tenancies,
each with a term commencing from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 (both days inclusive):
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Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2023 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental ~ Use
g% % R
No.  Landlord Tenant
1 RET FRBMRITH BENAEEERRREER 018 45,816 5630008 AR EEARAEES
ARCE12B2E 151828 162 (FBERER REE
2 218P15 PISZPBHESE R ERE BHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car parking HK$563,000  Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, spaces and signage spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 areas) of signage areas for
on 2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, advertising
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
2. RET E3 i BENABEESSH 2,300 27,0008 A%
REHESI0EBE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, HK$27,000  Head office
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
3. REfT FRBMRITH BENRZRERSSIFETABESE 5,531 870008  AIMEER/AEY
1323 4 5J6E EE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5.and 6 on &/F, HK$87,000  Branch office and/or
Chevalier House, multi-function room
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
4, RET BB R{TH BBNERREELS-51RE TR E5EAE 835 130008  AIRER
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$13,000  Branch office
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
5. REfT FRBRTH BBt A S5K2-685 3,460 388002ML  EMMERR
(29 BRAF BEAERT30-804310BME BEBERD
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida MOP38,800  Macau office
Company Limited da Praia Grande, Nos.2-6B Avenida and call centre

de D Joao IV, Macau
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Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by
Mr. Yuen as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to
approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately
9.95% and Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being
the Executive Directors. The above-mentioned Executive
Directors together controlled approximately 60.63% voting
power of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate
of the said Executive Directors and thus a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2023 Tenancy
Agreements constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements. Details
of the 2023 Tenancy Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 25 November 2022.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 58 to 76 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of this report, there was no significant event of the
Group after the reporting date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
Year, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying
while the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is
vacated. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of
the Group’s management from time to time and should candidate
with suitable knowledge, skills and experience be identified, the
Company will make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.



.

TEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

EEGREM

BEARSH EFEHEANRATESTR=0B1L
FRTEFER - RV —BBEIUIFNTEFEBEE
NWEXEAERKRUBEEFEENHZ > 5 LHRA
BUIRE - R AB BB T EHARRIE3.1053.10A < it
FEE - BUFATEENHEEETFELADORN=SD
z— Wt - EFEASEBIE  EAMIFHBILH
- EFEEHMNUTESAEMN:

HITEF
RXEFKE (ZE)
BEELE
REE A
FESUL
REBYLL
BFE&E

BUIFHTESE
BREz B
il
HERUL

IFERATESRNALERPTESFTFEST LT
REBE-RTEEFRRBRIARXALERFES K
T ORRITES) 2 LR -BITESF BIRELE
BEZLE RN EERFTES L L) ZBRENE
NETERRBEEEZ E#aNEARTRMFERR
mo FIMHITERTFNAET (RAERETETHE
HERZZRF) 2RO ERED FIEF2EH
REFRBEI7TEOEZ EEASREEEZREERS
MIBMEAMBZTEFERE-EFNKRG HE
Rin R EREP TN B I IR FEE3E6E 2 [E
FERE-HEXZREFZA0ED) B LXK
BEEFZHUEAMPE  EB REXEME
R/BRRG-

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents not less than
one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. Ms. Yuen Ho
Yee, the Executive Director, is the daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, both are the Executive Directors. The
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The above-mentioned
Executive Directors also have interests in the shares of Great Port,
which has certain transactions with the Group which constituted
connected transactions. Please refer to the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 77 to 80, “Report of
the Directors — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” on pages 41 to 44 and
“Report of the Directors — Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts” on pages 53 to 56 of this annual report for
more details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with one another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Ms. Yuen Ho Yee,
Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung
Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending seminars, reading training materials and updates
relevant to (i) the Group’s businesses; (ii) regulatory updates; (iii)
the Listing Rules; (iv) anti-corruption; or (v) Environmental, Social &
Governance (“ESG”) Practices.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three
years. Such term is subject to his/her retirement by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen and
Mr. Chan Kim Fai shall retire at the 2023 AGM. All of the retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least
four times a year.

20224E%%  Annual Report 2022 061



&8%RE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TPEEBRRS
Corporate Governance Report

MEENESERTZEENEBSELEZEN RS
X MEEFFRA%ZBNaERBER NZEEA
RymZESENEETeZE LB RERERER
T BREEAEEAH

= fanleiatnd
TXHINEEFHEARINREAFEMBTNESTS
Eluiiz éga ED%&HR%kﬁEquruaiﬁluilﬁ .

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting
of the Company held during the Year:

EE RN
HE/ AERLE
Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

B2 Elﬂﬁ’ﬂ@ &4 M
RRBERE Bxggs ZEgES Z2ggx3 ZEggE ZEgER
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination  Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings
HiTEZE Executive Directors
RXEEE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 1/1 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
BEZEE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 1/1 4/4 - - - -
2RI E Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 1/1 4/4 - 2/2 - -
FESRL Ms. Lee Po Fun 11 4/4 - - 11 1/1
REELT Ms. Yuen Ho Yee 1/1 4/4 - - - -
gEELE Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon 1/1 4/4 - - - -
BUFHTEE Inclependient Non-executive Directors
BiREL L Mr. Chan Kim Fai 11 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 1
Bagrt Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric il 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 11
BEAZL Ms. Wong Lai Ming 11 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 1
RERBFERG ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
ENTREBERGARATEEBERKRERETEE The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
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management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 31 May 2022
(“2022 AGM”).

At the 2022 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2022
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor; (i) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2022 respectively; (ii) reviewed the external auditor’s
reports to the Audit Committee on their statutory audit of financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and their
independent review of the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2022; (i) reviewed the audit plan of
the external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022; (iv)
reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system; and (v) made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditor and approval of the engagement letter of the external
auditor.

20224E% Annual Report 2022 063



&353R % GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

PEERRAE
EXEELAEREZECRITEXEARHE -BLEE
EREEEARENSEHNERZEENHELE
N-MAFE BEREZEEERTAATNERELH
RERBER BEFREREEBNEIIRGEEELRE
URARABETTRINER URRAREELRS
B EE o

RGEEEZSE

AR EEEZETHN2014F11813HMI  WHIF]EHA
BEEDHERE RREEZEShEeENEREHA
o EP—RARTES RMELE =8B BT
EHITES BIR@BEAE (ER) BEBLERSE
BRZT -EI REABREABILIERNITES-

REREEEZEENTEREARERN TR EERER
BERE ERFEREAREENES  BREER
Rt st R B EINBERY B Rt

REFE AREEZEERTTMREHZ -NEE
E RBREEZESERSAERIVAEIZERS
A5 BB = 2 AR R R B s = B2 R LR 0 AR Tl Rk B
ZERBFIEBMMNEEREAERNRHIREERE

064 =mmiEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control system of the Group, the Group’s high-level
related risks and key emerging risks and the controls in place to
mitigate such risks and the Group’s surplus cash management.



.

TEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

IEEHEEE
REEEGN2014F11 8133 I REBECEE A
TFRIFTEBEXH T EAREnRERE RLEEY
HERFALREBMAEN EFMBARITES BIRX
HEE (EF) REESF T UR=ZEABBILIENT
ERIMRmBELE BEBEtEREERRL o
b BB ARE D ERBUIFNITESE-

RUZEENTIEZEREOERATEFTEIRBE RE
ARk (BHERAE ~ M B 2 TiE A mE) » SLER
REGEABZARARBMBHEETEFHZEEIRE
HEB R BIIIFRATEFT 2B %

RAFE RREZEEGEET—RER -NEAFE
LEECERNEFTIRB ABKAN (BEK
FEAME KR AETAEHE) CFZBUIFATES
ZBUM W ARN2022FRRBFRG LEES
BREEFNVEMEERNESSIFLEREZ -

RAERBDRBERA BRLEEER@QREBEEFES
TEBRAEABEEESTEHRENTHRE
DEFRNEFTZRE ABKAR (BFEKRE-AN
#HEBAREZTERE)  TRMERNSEEERTZA
BIRBEMBNESSFHZERHERE OWER
BEBERIRIESGMEZ AL UREREE
BMATHESSEAMLEAEETSREESR  RCOME
ERANENEEUREST CHREIEREFELE
@R It nEEEREEZ -ERESFS
NWEFEZTCERNFR F2RAEEERRS
EEgZnibintho

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises a total of five members, being two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the VYear.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the re-election of all retiring
Directors at the 2022 AGM.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity” of this
Corporate Governance Report for details of the Board’s policy on
board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members, being two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group, reviewed the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee, reviewed the remuneration
package of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management as well as reviewed the remuneration of Independent

Non-executive Directors for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the

NEEREINSAEEZBZERE DNEEFHFME  annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
BT then in office by band for the Year are as follows:
A
Number of
B A8 B Remuneration band individuals
= 21,000,000% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Board has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and has set measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) to
implement the Board Diversity Policy. All the Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board will review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consists of six male members
and three female members. Having taken into account the
measurable objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee considered that the Board had achieved
gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse
mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will review
the composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2022, approximately 52.72% of the Group’s
employee (including senior management) of the Group’s total
workforce are female and approximately 40% of the Group’s senior
management roles are held by women. The Board is satisfied that
the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION AND
AUDITOR RELATED MATTERS

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$1.6 million and
approximately HK$0.4 million, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the Year.
The Directors were aware of the material uncertainty related to
going concern of the Company.

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
the COVID-19 pandemic began in early 2020 still has a profound
negative impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial position for the year, in particular for the entry restrictions,
quarantine requirements, visa suspension implemented by
different jurisdictions for visitors across the world. The Japanese
Government resumed cross-border travel for tourists in early June
2022 and the Group eventually was able to organise Hong Kong’s
first package tour to Japan on 22 June 2022. In the second
half of 2022, the quarantine requirements imposed by the Hong
Kong Government began to loosen up, as such revenue from the
travel related business sector increased. However, the number of
customers did not yet rebound to the level before the pandemic
up to 31 December 2022. Subsequent to the year end, the
Japanese Government has lifted up most of the COVID-19 related
restrictions relevant to the tourism industry, including visa wavier,
restriction removal of free independence visitors upon arrival to
Japan, etc.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$75,499,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and as of that date, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$144,334,000. In addition, the Group had loans due to a
related company of approximately HK$313,918,000 (note 35(b))
and bank borrowings of approximately HK$365,366,000 (note
25), out of these balances HK$243,601,000 was repayable within
twelve months. As further disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the current portion of bank borrowings
included an amount of HK$203,808,000 for which the Group
did not fulfill the financial covenants and the lender was entitled
to demand immediate repayment. However, as at 31 December
2022, the balance of cash at banks and on hand was only
approximately HK$204,300,000.
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In the opinion of the Board, the Group will have sufficient

working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial

obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future,

based on the cash flow projections of the Group covering a

period up to 30 June 2024 (the “Forecast Period”) after taking the

followings into consideration:

(@)

(e

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, Great Port, a related company, agreed to
provide additional credit facilities of not less than HK$100
million to the Group during the Forecast Period;

The operating results of travel related business would be
improved based on the expected recovery of the tourism
industry in Hong Kong and Japan. The management
expected that the Group’s travel related business will
gradually go back to the pre-COVID-19 level in the first
quarter of 2024. Sensitivity analysis has been carried out
on this assumption to test the resilience of the forecasted
liquidity;

In respect of the bank borrowings of HK$193,808,000, the
Group obtained a waiver of compliance with the covenant
requirement on 12 January 2023;

The Group continues to operate EGL Market Company
Limited to diversify its business to sale of merchandises; and

The management of the Group keeps endeavoring to seek
additional sources of finance.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about

their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set

out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 89 of this

annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to
keep track, record and report identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted
to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high
risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements,

attention and risk treatment effort required.
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During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner is
required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the
risk response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The
risk register with the risk responses and residual risks is reported
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and reports
to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to
the Board’s oversight.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all
material aspect of controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The review covered the foreign exchange risk
management and the Group’s surplus cash management.

During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

° Tour operations
° Human resources & payroll
° Procurement, Accounts Payable and Payment

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSs, the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws
of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem
relevant.

The Company, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.

20224 % Annual Report 2022 073



&353R % GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

NEME

ARABRAME (REAWE) —BHEEHELLTE
F-RAMERETRDEE THEFEEHE - AW
EEEREEFENEFAREFENEZHRERR
MAEERBZENBEE RARANEFrFEERRED
165/\EFRY AR R 2185 A B AT H A SE R Ao

ARERHEF

FABRRAEARRNEZTGRHUBEBNH G K
NEBFREFTRENMMRTRRBFEAG -

REAFRRGIIAE ((IREFIAE))

RBESERMBFME RRFHIKREGIE—%
ZRREERMAR MZERINEREXEHR
RARDRARRRRAE LRENEARTEHR
TN+ D2 — ZEBEERAUEFHEEFTST XMW
EEARAEBBMFEFL (HEFMUADEEBA
BEER RS E B8R M E 5 1618) > WHIRHER

BB UEBKREZENEEZERMIEENERNE
BORRRFBIAE - HEFENZBERERE21
HAREBHZAG AIRHERELA (KRF) AJLU
BRAAABBARE > MAATARRELEREEGMTER
HERERNEFERECGRAGMEENE GER
%o

074 H=mERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING ("EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS” MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
facilitating understanding of the Shareholders and potential
investors on the Group’s business, performance and strategies.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by
making available all the disclosures posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to Directors or management of the Company. Such
requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company Secretary by mail to the Company’s head office in Hong

questions,

Kong.
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To promote effective communication, the Company has
established a shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) and the Board shall review
it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. Shareholders can
refer to the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy” posted on the
Company’s website for more details.

The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
and considered that the Shareholders’” Communication Policy was
appropriate and effective during the Year.

During the Year, there were no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 71, is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated the creation
of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL
Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management Group
Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited (“EGL
Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”),
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings
(Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL Investment Group Company
Limited (“EGL Investment”), EGL Market Company Limited (“EGL
Market”) and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a
director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is responsible for important decision making of the
Group, overseeing both tours and hotel operation development,
promoting the Japanese market, planning for tour itinerary in
Japan, supervising and training tour escorts, and strategic
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 38 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun who is an Executive
Director of the Company, and the father of Ms. Yuen Ho Yee who
is an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 65, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Huen
joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a director of
EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL
Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Huen is the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development of the Group, public relations, specialised
gourmet tourism, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in Macau and Shenzhen respectively.
Mr.
experience in the tourism industry.

Huen has over 38 years of extensive knowledge and
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 68, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. He is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau,
EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is responsible for managing the receiving services for outbound
tourism in Japan, frontline sales, customer services, accounting
and administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung has over
38 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 64, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. She is a member of
both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987. She also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Market and other subsidiaries of the Company. She is also
a director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the information
technology department, human resources development and
the overall tour operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over
38 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry. Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying who is
the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company, and the
mother of Ms. Yuen Ho Yee who is an Executive Director of the
Company.

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee (“Ms. Yuen”), aged 34, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 28 May 2021. Ms. Yuen joined
the Group in November 2011. She serves as a director of EGL
Tours and a subsidiary of the Company. She is responsible for
overseeing the operations in the marketing and public relations
department, overseas wedding department and product
development department. She is also responsible for formulating
strategies for promoting the Group’s image and business and
developing new products for the future development of the Group.
She has over 11 years of experience in the tourism industry.
Ms. Yuen graduated in July 2010 from the University of
Nottingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Management Studies. Ms. Yuen is the daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company,
and Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 58, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since 28 May 2021.
Mr. Cheang is the financial controller of the Group. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 34 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 64, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Mr. Chan
is currently an independent non-executive director of Magnificent
Hotel Investments Limited (stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property
Investments Limited (stock code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (stock code: 253) (all these companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan has also served as the sole proprietor
of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia.
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Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 77, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management of
the Group independently. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of ASMPT Limited (formerly known as ASM
Pacific Technology Limited) (stock code: 522), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tang was qualified as
a Chartered Accountant in Canada and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 64, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
Ms. Wong is a non-practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 61, has been
the company secretary of the Company since 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 38 years of experience
in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong holds a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
and a bachelor of law degree from Peking University. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 213, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$75,499,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 and as of that date, its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$144,334,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

(refer to notes 4(m), 14, 15 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
prepayments amounted to HK$471,798,000, HK$18,361,000 and
HK$61,151,000 respectively.

These non-financial assets mainly comprised freehold land, hotel
buildings and leasehold improvements of hotels in Japan, right-of-
use assets of rented premises and prepayments to suppliers.

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had cancelled and/
or postponed its travel related products and services (“Travel
Related Business”) to those affected cities and countries since
mid-March 2020, scaled down its hotel operation in Osaka and
Okinawa during the year. Such arrangements have halted the
operations of the Travel Related Business and hotels (“Hotel
Business”) and adversely impacted the Group’s financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2022. These were identified as
indicators of impairment to the Group’s non-financial assets and
accordingly, impairment assessments were carried out by the
management. The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer as management’s expert to assist its assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuec)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets were tested at
cash generated units (“CGU”). The management considers each
hotel business in Osaka and Okinawa, Japan, Travel Related
Business, and Sale of Merchandises Business to be four separate
CGUs.

The recoverable amounts of the four CGUs were determined
based on the higher of their value-in-use (“VIU”) or fair value less
costs of disposal (“FVLCD”).

For impairment assessment of the CGUs of Travel Related
Business and Sale of Merchandises Business

Management estimated the VIU of these two CGUs using
discounted cash flow method based on cash flow forecasts
covering a period of 5 years. The impairment assessment involved
significant judgements towards future results of the businesses,
in particular, the key assumptions in future gross profit margin,
annual revenue growth rates, terminal growth rates and discount
rates.

For impairment assessment of the two CGUSs of hotel business
in Osaka and Okinawa, Japan

Management estimated the FVLCD of these two CGUs based on
market approach, by using market values of comparable hotel
properties in Japan adjusted for factors such as differences in
age and conditions between the comparable hotel properties and
those of the Group. The selection of comparable hotel properties
and the adjustments made involved significant judgements and
assumptions.

Based on management’s assessments described above, no
impairment loss was made for the Group’s non-financial assets as
at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Continued)

We have identified the impairment assessment of non-financial
assets as a key audit matter because of its significance to
the consolidated financial statements and because VIU and
FVLCD calculations involve significant management judgements,
assumptions and estimates.

Our response:
Our key audit procedures included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
identification of the CGUs based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

= Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies applied
in respect of the assessment of the recoverable amounts;

= Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions of
the cash flow projections of the Travel Related Business
CGU and Sale of Merchandises CGU including future gross
profit margin, annual revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rates and discount rates and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions in determining the fair values of the two hotel
business CGUs based on our knowledge of the Group’s
business and industry;

= Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and
considering the reasonableness of the evidence;

= Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment; and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number: PO5057

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2022F12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
=3 FET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
& Revenue 7 196,479 44,578
5 & A Cost of sales (157,598) (73,755)
EX (ERH) Gross profit/(loss) 38,881 (29,177)
H A IR K E5187% %8 Other income, gains and losses, net 7 30,418 11,313
HER Selling expenses (37,147) (29,081)
THRX Administrative expenses (100,634) (108,569)
H&K &Mz Other operating expenses 8 (818) (33,452)
FE(L B AT AR Share of results of associates (238) (513)
BB A Finance costs 8 (22,658) (14,854)
FRFT1SIRAIESIE Loss before income tax 8 (92,196) (199,333)
PRIGIRIE R Income tax credit 9 16,697 42,908
FERE Loss for the year (75,499) (156,425)
HeoEHoEEEREN Other comprehensive income, that
Hth2mas . may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
MBI ERER Exchange differences on translation of
FERE%R foreign operations (25,887) (24,574)
IR E BN E AT Share of exchange differences on
PERERR translation of foreign associates (893) (2,977)
HEnsfhrwE, Effect on cash flow hedge,
MR IE net of tax 454 753
FEEMEEWE Other comprehensive income for the year,
OBRIRIE net of tax (26,326) (26,798)
FEZEWNEEZE Total comprehensive income for the year,
Np&IRIE net of tax (101,825) (183,223)

090 =H=miERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income |
HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
i3 FHET FHB7T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FELEFEERE Loss for the year attributable to:
KABHEB A Owners of the Company (74,299) (155,635)
JFIERG Non-controlling interests (1,200) (790)
(75,499) (156,425)
FE(h 2 EUR R 48 %E - Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
KRABHEB A Owners of the Company (100,802) (182,571)
R = Non-controlling interests (1,023) (652)
(101,825) (183,223)
ERBEE A Loss per share for loss attributable to
FE(EE B2 BREBE owners of the Company
—BEXRK#EE (BL) ~ Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 (14.79) (30.98)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
12022 12H31H As at 31 December 2022
2022 2021
Kiat FET FET
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERTEE Non-current assets
M~ BB KR Property, plant and equipment 14 471,798 580,238
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 18,361 26,860
A= N=TE Interests in associates 16 8,096 9,900
RERIEE E Deferred tax assets 17 102,502 92,700
TTEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 27 1,154 533
Sl RFENR Deposits and prepayments 20 2,028 1,963
603,939 712,194
MENEE Current assets
=78 Inventories 18 1,733 2,582
B 5 R Trade receivables 19 6,766 3,210
Sl TENFREMMEIWIE  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 74,510 42 158
FEUS B = A B BRFR Amount due from an associate 16(b) 5,542 6,290
AU AR I8 Tax recoverable 131 222
IIRERITEN Pledged bank deposits 21 8,135 8,326
RITERREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 21 204,300 130,133
301,117 192,921
mEaE Current liabilities
B ZEMER Trade payables 22 15,582 5,220
FEST R IE K HHAFE (T BR Accruals and other payables 23 46,786 23,506
=Ep=NE Contract liabilities 24 100,887 12,161
FE T Bt i A B BR AR Amount due to an associate 16(b) 20 12
EAFERN=IN= Loans from a related company 35(b) 30,000 —
GEN=S=NE Lease liabilities 15, 38,193 40,071
IR Provision for taxation 382 290
RITIE Bank borrowings 25 213,601 239,677
445,451 320,937
mEaERE Net current liabilities (144,334) (128,016)
WEERRIHEE Total assets less current liabilities 459,605 584,178

092 H=miEEBRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

122022128 31H As at 31 December 2022

<

2022 2021
k=3 FAET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
B Provision 26 648 738
RITER Bank borrowings 25 151,765 180,441
HEaE Lease liabilities 15 2,805 7,831
RIEABER Loans from a related company 35(b) 283,918 272,874
439,136 461,884
BEEZEE Net assets 20,469 122,294
= EQUITY
EREVEE AN Capital and reserves attributable to
eI B A e it 1 owners of the Company
[N Share capital 28 50,245 50,245
G Reserves 29 (27,150) 73,652
23,095 123,897
IR = Non-controlling interests 34 (2,626) (1,608)
TR 4AER Total equity 20,469 122,294
RRESZE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXH 22 pf
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITESE

Executive Director

Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2022F12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

YN

Attributable to owners of the Company

Al AERE  BRRA NERE  HMERE  RHER B FERERZ  HEEE

Foreign Non-
Merger  Statutory Capital  exchange Hedging  Accumulated controlling Total
reserve’ reserve* contribution* reserve* reserve* losses* Total  interests equity

TER TR TR TiEn TiEm TiEm TiEm TiEn TR
HKB000  HKS'000  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

R2022F1A1R
FEER
E2ElE
BEEI B
ERER

FEREBMERRN
EREH

RERBHNZTE IHRA

At 1 January 2022

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

of foreign operations

Share of exchange differences on
translation of foreign associates

Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax

(58,214) g2 53884 (13,890) 37 (B46T2 123897 (1,603) 122,294

= = . . - (4209 (14299 (1,000 (75499)

FEREREAE

Total comprehensive income for the year

202212R318

At 31 December 2022

* ZERE

094 H=miERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

AR A MBI R TRERE

- - - (26,064) - - (26,064) 177 (25,887)

- = = (893) = = (893) = (893)

= = = = 454 = 454 = 454

- - - (26,957) 454 (74,299) (100,802 (1,023 (101,825)
(58,214) 872 53884 (40,847) 791 (18971) 23,095 (2626 20469
* The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity |
HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

KREREAEE
Attributable to owners of the Company

RERF/

RE  RGRE  AfEE  EERE  ERRA SNERE  HAEE FRS8)- B FERERE  BReE
Retained

Foreign eanings/ Non-
Share Share Merger Statutory Capital exchange Hedging  (accumulated controling Total
capital premium* reserve” reserve”  contribution® reserve” resere’ losses)* Total interests equity

TEn TEn TER TEn Tén TEn TER Tén TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

120211818 At 1 January 2021 50,245 145,335 (68,214) 872 = 13,798 (416) 100,963 262,583 (950) 251,633
FEFR Loss for the year - - - - - - - (155635 (155,695 (790)  (156,425)
Eth2ahs Otter comprehensive income
BEENEBN Exchange differences on translation
EREE of foreign operations - - - - - (24.111) - = (24.711) 187 (24.574)
FE(LIAIEINEE BN Share of exchange differences on
EREE tranglation of foreign associates - - - - - (2977) - - (297 - (2977)
Renmefhzyd Effect on cash flow hedge,
ek net of tax - - - - - - 753 - 753 - 75
EERANGER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 6w 753 [1556%)  (182570) 053 (183229
REBEAFERN Deemed capital contrioution
REEERA arising from loans from
arelated company - - - - 53,884 - - - 53,884 - 53,884
R021E128318 At 31 December 2021 025 M5B (38214 B2 B (138%) W B e (6 12
* ZERBREAGRSMBRIRPIEE * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2022F12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
sz FTAET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEHELZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
PRPTI1SIRAIES 18 Loss before income tax (92,196) (199,333)
A Adjustments for:
ME- -BERREBTE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8 40,462 58,498
FREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 19,820 23,737
REMA Finance costs 8 22,658 14,854
RITERF]EWA Interest income on bank deposits 7 (279) (18)
HEME BE K& E Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
B8/ (Wa) 8 plant and equipment, net 8 7 (69)
KIFFAERRE/ (KE) Loss/(gain) on termination of lease 8 242 37)
() MEEA TR (Reversal of)/written off of prepayments and
H e U iR other receivables 7.8 (24,498) 33,558
B 5 EWNIRY BiIRiR Bad debts written off in respect of trade receivable 8 105 -
ERZ BB GS Gain on modification of loan payment 7 (229) (309)
HEREEHNE Gain on rental concession of lease 7 (1,844) (3,070)
FELEE AR 28 Share of results of associates 238 513
SEESEEHR 2 EEREARE  Operating cash flows before working capital changes (35,514) (71,676)
BFERLD/ (8m) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 826 (1,278)
B 5 U ARIZ N Increase in trade receivables (3,789) (1,678)
I BRI REMERER (Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments and
(gm /ml other receivables (7,973) 44,493
FE B & A B BR AR D Decrease in amount due from an associate 748 732
B ST IRIEM Increase in trade payables 10,348 300
FEETRIE R AMET AR Increase/(decrease) in accruals and
2,/ Geizb) other payables 24,156 (16,503)
BHEBEEN,/ (R Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 88,712 (6,054)
FEBE AR RIS, (AZ)  Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an associate 8 (67)
SEEL/ A 2R Cash generated from/(used in) operations 77,522 (51,731)
ROFFEH Income tax refund 156 1,002
EETHESL () 2+ 558 Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 77,678 (50,729)

096 H=mirEiRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

<

2022 2021
Kzt TET TET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REGTHELZHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEME - BERRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,520) (2,652)
HEME F BR#&EZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

PG plant and equipment = 251
?&?%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂ‘ Decrease in pledged bank deposits 191 252
BUF & Interest received 279 18
REZHHZHEE5 Net cash used in investing activities (1,050) 2,131)
RETHELZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITERETERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 39 2,000 =
BERITER Repayment of bank borrowings 39 (7,185) (10,427)
b cNEIEEN Advance from a related company 39 30,000 120,000
ENHERENESEH D Principal element of lease rental paid 39 (16,624) (17,634)
BENHERENH S8 D Interest element of lease rental paid 39 (1,307) (1,940)
BAFE Interest paid 39 (9,353) (5,329)
HEZE (Br/H)  EL %8 Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (2,469) 84,670
RERAEEEBYILINEEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 74,159 31,810
INEERESE T E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 8 (464)
ENRERREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 130,133 98,787
EXRFAERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 21 204,300 130,133
2022463 Annual Report 2022 097
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F12831H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

1.

—RE

RERBEERBRAR (TRAF]) R2014F78
CAHEHESHETMMIAERREERER
N E) o AN A B B9 5 ¥t = R Ak A Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islandsc H = & &
EMBUNTBNEREBE BT RELEE
151

1

KATIMREIDF2014FE11B28E N EAM AR
SRR ARAT (TBAZFT) Tk Eme

FARMEEZXEF/REER HNBATNE
EEFHN GRS M BRRMEESS-

FRBNERARKRERATDAEREEER
BRAR — RPN EBEBRESEMA LA
= o

B E2022F 12831 HIEFEZ GG HERETD
EEEER2023FE3F24H#HL o

098 H=miEEBRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 24 July 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approved by the board of directors on
24 March 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4

HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. REEZE

@

(e

EHREEH
HEMBREDERAEBRENERYME
BRERER ERBEEEESAMAEHE
HHPREBRNEREBYHREER
BB EREE) KR -GEMHBRE
FEEEB(RTRA) KB XFrEF L H
RANBAKEER-

FTERERIGEAAE KRR

REVMBBRRERELERAEZRE  FiT
EEMTANDETIXFAHEZ G5 BERAR
REESE-

FR2020F E# B RI2019FE H B Wik R 5=
% (TCOVID-191) BIBEMBEAEB R AFE
NHBERAAMERTIEEABEEE
TEHEAREZEEHERERTEMNIA
RRF BB REREFEEE - AR
122022968 FAIMEERNEIRREE M
REBRRAENIE2022FE6 22 A4 &
BEERTEBERNRITE 720225 T F
FOEBBRNERNOMEZREHEKE
(A Ikt i B iR 402 48 B8 25 75 36 P9 A0 U 25 8 T 38
Ao AT > Bl E2022F12831H  BRH=E
BAREFERBRIFIKE - RER > BAK
T B BH A BB 93 BLCOVID- 194 B8 A9 ik i 2
R BiER%E  BUHIKRZEBR AB BHIT
FEEBIPREIE o

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

@

()

Staternent of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for a
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic
began in early 2020 still has a profound negative
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial position for the year, in particular for the entry
restrictions, quarantine requirements, visa suspension
implemented by different jurisdictions for visitors across
the world. The Japanese Government resumed cross-
border travel for tourists in early June 2022 and the
Group eventually was able to organise Hong Kong'’s
first package tour to Japan on 22 June 2022. In the
second half of 2022, the quarantine requirements
imposed by the Hong Kong Government began to
loosen up, as such revenue from the travel related
business sector increased. However, the number of
customers did not yet rebound to the level before the
pandemic up to 31 December 2022. Subsequent to
the year end, the Japanese Government has lifted up
most of the COVID-19 related restrictions relevant to
the tourism industry, including visa wavier, restriction
removal of free independence visitors upon arrival to
Japan, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2022F12H31H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. REIEE 4

b) FERZERGELZRK @

B E2022F12831HIEFE  AEFHESE
E5384975,499,0008 70> ME 2% H » &%
B REhaEBHEREN B E41144,334,000
Broolltsh KEBBRERNBEATER
#9313,918,0008 7t (MI5E35(b)) K IRTT(E
#9365,366,0008 7T (IsE25) » ZEMX
IEFA9243,601,0008 BN+ @B K
BiE o s UN MY sE25FFE— P IR EE - B1T
B BN HE 69> ©45203,808,0008 75 0 H
PAREBIRBITHVBERE BEHAS
REESRAE [ I BNMEE - AT » 120224
12831 H IRITERREGFRSEREDN
204,300,000 7T ©

BEReRA KEETISEE RELRE
BHZEEE2024F6830H (EHAR (T7E A
HE)) WIREREBEI > ~EEEEEH
EEECAHEBRMHESRNAIRER
BITEIEAN B ET

@ REaBFRzEMNEESH BEAQ
BAAREBITARAR (TKRET) BER
8 80 #A R 42 < /D 52100,000,00078
TCEEINMEERMBEAAER ;

(b) MREEMEFNLCEELEENSTER
HARE X TERREREM B T
EoEEEEAAERENREHERE
BN 2024FEE—EZXR L MEE
COVID-19Z A BI7K F e B R E 1T
BRED T Mg AFEARSHESH
R1EST ;
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continueq)

The Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$75,499,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
and as of that date, its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$144,334,000.
In addition, the Group had loans due to a related
company of approximately HK$313,918,000 (note
35(b)) and bank borrowings of approximately
HK$365,366,000 (note 25), out of these balances
HK$243,601,000 was repayable within twelve
months. As further disclosed in note 25, the current
portion of bank borrowings included an amount of
HK$203,808,000 for which the Group did not fulfill
the financial covenants and the lender was entitled
to demand immediate repayment. However, as at 31
December 2022, the balance of cash at banks and on
hand was only approximately HK$204,300,000.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future, based on the cash flow
projections of the Group covering a period up to 30
June 2024 (the “Forecast Period”) after taking the
followings into consideration:

(@) As at the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, Great Port Limited (“Great
Port”), a related company, agreed to provide
additional credit facilities of not less than HK$100
million to the Group during the Forecast Period;

(b) The operating results of travel related business
would be improved based on the expected
recovery of the tourism industry in Hong Kong
and Japan. The management expected that the
Group’s travel related business will gradually go
back to the pre-COVID-19 level in the first quarter
of 2024. Sensitivity analysis has been carried out
on this assumption to test the resilience of the
forecasted liquidity;
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HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. RUEE

(b)

FTERZERIGHEAAZ KRR @)

(c) FLIR{TE 193,808,000 LM s *
R2023FE 18120 REEEHRFE
TFHEEEXK ;

(d) ZEEFE4ESZEEGL Market Company
Limited > FHEB L Tt EE M
& &

e FTEEEEEFERNSKEINE

BENLXFE EFERERELREL
MR B (BETEBETIRRN Z 5
BISREARNEIMEERERNBER
RSBRIINETRR HAEBBRREME
HBREMEMEFNLBZER URESR
EEEERUBMMENEEERTEE
M -BEZEEMRFECEERERURS
MBRERDEEE -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuec)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continuea)

() In respect of the bank borrowings of
HK$193,808,000, the Group obtained a waiver of
compliance with the covenant requirement on 12
January 2023;

(d)  The Group continues to operate EGL Market
Company Limited to diversify its business to sale
of merchandises; and

() The management of the Group keeps
endeavoring to seek additional sources of
finance.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Board will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above, including
whether the Group is able to successfully arrange the
additional credit facilities from the related company
and source additional sources of finance when it is
needed, availability of necessary resources to ramp
up operations once the Group expects to increase
the scale of operations and whether the business
operations would recover as expected. The Board
is satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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HZE2022F12H31H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. REIEE 4

b) FERZERGELZRK @

HAEBRELIEERFBEEERELEX
B AARGEHMBRRFUHAREURE
EBEMREETEIRFR [EMAE
EEZRINERFELERF UKRIFR
BEERFRBERDINEMDER/NBE
ERRBER WLFHBENTZEL RINF
B BREARE

© DEERZSIEHE
REMBHREURLFINA
Bl

EE®RETZ

3. RMBEEBMBRSER

@ RAFTETHLAANEET B IREHE
BI|—20228FE 151 H%E34
AEBRAEEERFALUTEB G T
NEBHENMARETIETETBREE
AR ANEER2022F1B1H 2 BFRAKBZ
FEEHRBZ MERE

o BEGHEAFEI6 (BFIX) - Y
X -BEKRzRE  RERERBAE
IR

e BEUBREEASE
?IElEg’ltw%/uﬂ:_ﬁ

35k (BT 4) —

o  EBETSHERIFEITHE (B5T4) —HAE
EN-RBITEHNZRA
o EBTEREER2018FEE20205F

ZEENE
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

©)

©

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continueq)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the consolidated financial statements to write down
the values of the assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of such adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA to the Group’s financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

° Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
° Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the

Conceptual Framework

o Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
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3.

Rk

n

@

WE B TEREER @

PRANFTET B A AE 5T & B R 75 3R & 22
B|—2022F 15 1H %34 (8

ZE NI E B R EENETR
ENAERAPRRNBEHREINLEERYH
RREEEAFE - AEBTEIREER
FAZS & BT HR RS 4 Sk £ M R 32T RSB
SIEBYBREED - ERAZRSEETE
BRI HER R  E IR T

BBEEERF 165 (E5TE) — %K
BERR M - #EEHERTHITE R
ERAGERIB165E (B5TX) WE K=
RBRBRILEREYME BERRHBEE
ARG ZEREEFRZBREERR
IEERRKHE ZERREHRIE HIRHA
BRE EERILARNEEZRNASR
REREF NTAAEHEESS EREE
T BEZMBRERZIEER B
AEBRNBEIFERAEIHELNENZ
PRISRUR & B R A s

BB IR E R B3 (1E5T7) — It
BLSHEZR
EBMBREERFEIRES S H ML)
tBIEST > UEHH M HFREHIERNRE
oW EAE S ERIBITREHE WA
BEAFIEBEEUKREE BRMBRS
2EEZEY) 2EF2IRNHELEANNE
—ERSARERAEERIHIIMNMENR &
EBEIRTEE A SN E R ARENEE
Ao

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2022 (Continued)

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior period. The Group has not early
applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Impact
on the applications of these amended HKFRSs are
summarised below.

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment prohibits an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced
while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended
use. It also clarifies that an entity is testing whether
the asset is functioning properly when it assesses
technical and physical performance of the asset. The
financial performance of the asset is not relevant to
this assessment. Entities must disclose separately
the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary
activities.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Minor amendments were made to HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations to update the references to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and
to add an exception for the recognition of liabilities
and contingent liabilities within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21 Levies. The
amendments also confirm that contingent assets
should not be recognised at the acquisition date.
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3. RMERBMBHRSEN @

@ FRAAFETEASNEET & B & &
Bl|—2022F 15 1HER &)
BB T HERES75E (155T77) —BES
H—BITERIZ 2K
EB G EREI7E (BEA) BREE
B AHNEERAGERITERSAN
WEMAREBTANEBEEANEMR
ANDB - BAEEANNEBRER B
R EAT A ENTARMERL-

BB IR & ZER|20184F F2020F 2 FFE
&

T 2R 2020FE58 526,

s BARAVBREEMNFSREMITA—
5 BRAR IEFESR & R & (R BY10% RSP
BEZER-

s BARAMBRSEMNFIGREE 1B
$£13HBA - MEFLBABTBEEEY
EEREMRZRA LUSKREREE
BREEZ MRS

s BRAVBWREENZIRNERRMNE
AMBREEA - AFERE QTR
Hi#k 2 REAEFEREERER
WERTEASGAS 2RI EE
ERENRFERER ZEITLTE
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e EBEHERBMRERE-—MIFER
BESBSHENSINRAELIR
BERRDIGRAREAEZRE
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2022 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

The amendment to HKAS 37 clarifies that the
direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling the contract and an
allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling
contracts. Before recognising a separate provision
for an onerous contract, the entity recognises any
impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in
fulfilling the contract.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The following improvements were finalised in May
2020:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — clarifies which
fees should be included in the 10% test for
derecognition of financial liabilities.

° HKFRS 16 Leases — amendment of illustrative
example 13 to remove the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements, to remove any confusion about
the treatment of lease incentives.

° HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — allows entities
that have measured their assets and liabilities
at carrying amounts recorded in their parent’s
books to also measure any cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by
the parent. This amendment will also apply to
associates and joint ventures that have taken the
same HKFRS 1 exemption.

° HKAS 41 Agriculture — removal of the requirement
for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation
when measuring fair value under HKAS 41.
This amendment is intended to align with the
requirement in the standard to discount cash
flows on a post-tax basis.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

o Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

o Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

o Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

° Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback?

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”) 24

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities

with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)?

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

©)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

9 No mandatory effective date determined yet but
available for adoption.

& As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the
effective date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In
addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments
and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The HKICPA amended HKAS 1 to require entities
to disclose their material rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments define what is
“material accounting policy information” and explain
how to identify when accounting policy information is
material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting
policy information does not need to be disclosed, if it
is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting
information.

To support this amendment, the HKICPA also amended
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is
important, because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments require companies to recognise
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible
temporary differences. They will typically apply
to transactions such as leases of lessees and
decommissioning obligations and will require the
recognition of additional deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions
that occurs on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, entities
should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that
it is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax
liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period for all deductible and taxable temporary

differences associated with:
° right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

° decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities, and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related
assets.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Continued)

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments
is recognised in retained earnings/accumulated losses,
or another component of equity, as appropriate.

HKAS 12 did not previously address how to account
for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and
similar transactions and various approaches were
considered acceptable. Some entities may have
already accounted for such transactions consistent
with the new requirements. These entities will not be
affected by the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The Amendments provide a requirement for the seller-
lessee to determine “lease payments” or “revised lease
payments” in a way that the seller-lessee would not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to
the right of use retained by the seller-lessee.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify the requirements on
determining if a liability is current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity
has the right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments:

° specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement
must exist at the end of the reporting period;

° clarify that classification is unaffected by
management’s intentions or expectations about
whether the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement;

° clarify how lending conditions affect classification;
and

° clarify the classification of liabilities that will or
may be settled by issuing an entity’s own equity
instruments.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

The amendments clarify how to treat liabilities that are
subject to covenants to be complied with, at a date
subsequent to the reporting period. The Amendments
improve the information an entity provides when its
right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months is subject to compliance with covenants. The
Amendments clarify that only covenants with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
will affect a liability’s classification as current or non-
current. The Amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application of the
Amendments is permitted. The Amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

©)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continueq)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@ Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise

the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates.

Inter-company transactions and balances between

group companies together with unrealised profits are

eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial

statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated

unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment

on the asset transferred,
recognised in profit or loss.

in which case the loss is

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests

that represent present ownership interests in the

subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial

recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share

of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive

income is attributed to such non-controlling interests

even if this results in those non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

(b)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company

is able to exercise control.

The Company controls

an investee if all three of the following elements are

present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or

rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)

the ability to use its power to affect those variable

returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and

circumstances indicate that there may be a change in

any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,

investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less

any accumulated impairment losses. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received and receivable during the

year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

©

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.



a b

e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEEHHEE @

(@) SMEBRE
EEERNAECEXTMEZ2LBIRIER
B (THheEEK)) DUMNNEBETHR
7 RBRXSELERFNBEREXARKRINEEG
REERERALIRSHRNERERR
B DUNEEEMASHENIFEREREE S
AERMME

HEHEREERMEEREEMELEN
EREENREELHRBENEnPESD -

e ARE BIEBHRZEBUER
FTHEXMEDSEAATNEINEE (B8
70) CBRIFFERNERRIBRE > FEILBER
T RIBRETZERZHNEEERR
B-FABNEFNEERBRHURSE
RN BREXRE -FEENEREE
(MAE) REMEE WD S IR
AEBRIREmARIINERE R (B IR TR ED
nER)) °

6 YFE- BMERZE
M B R B Th I AR EL AR R EH T
EREARRERREK

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(@)  Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in

currencies other than the currency of the primary

economic environment in which they operate (the

“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates

ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency

monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of

monetary items, and on the translation of monetary

items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign

operations are translated into the presentation currency

of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange

rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate

significantly during the year, in which case, the rates

approximating to those ruling when the transactions

took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign

operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end

of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,

if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

(e) Property, plant and equijprment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost

less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

€

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel and other buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(e)  Property, plant and equijpment (Continuea)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable

amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,

plant and equipment is the difference between the

net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is

recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

() Leases

Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or

finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the

consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-

use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy

choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)

leases which are short term leases of office equipment

and travel buses and/or (ii) leases for which the

underlying asset is of low-value. The election for short-

term leases is made by class of underlying asset to

which the right of use relates. The Group has elected

not to recognise right-of use assets and lease liabilities

for both of the choice for the leases in respect of office

equipment and travel buses. The lease payments

associated with those leases have been expensed on

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease

liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

@

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Subsequent to the commencement date, under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the shorter of useful lives and lease term.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

U

Leases (Continueqd)
Accounting as a lessee (Continueq)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (jii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iiij remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9)  Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

U

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9)  Financial instruments (Continuea)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, current creditworthiness
of the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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(9 =ZFITA #) () Financial instruments (Continued)
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(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held) or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.

20224E%% Annual Report 2022 121



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMRHmRM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F12H31H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEBE @

@

TH TR #)

(i)

(i)

TR EERERE (B
EEERENEREENFBWA
ThREMEENEENA BIREA
BRBEEEB) tE -KREERE
TRMEEMS > M EBWATRIRE R
BstE-

EEBEMBTREBARAREYH
PRIZE > B 8 B PR TR A B) W [ RUR B
(BIENE 5 A OB B W EAWER
o Br B 7 BRI = EB BB
ME URFPELEERE)) rHFEH
EHHEMEE - KERERERRRE
(MBER) "EMHEZEMEEE
HAERAEEWERERF T X 2 586
AT EBZAR - ERERUE Z
IEf B m P o

ZHER
FEERBEREEZENHER
BRETOE BBHENLHENS
MEENEEREARBERELENE
N

122 mEEERARAR  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9)  Financial instruments (Continuea)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continuea)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
amount due to an associate, loans from a related
company, lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is re-measured. The gain
or loss on re-measurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged (see note 4(g)(vii)).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

20224E%% Annual Report 2022 123



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMRHmRM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F12H31H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEBE @

@

TH TR #)

(v)

(v)

(Vi)

BRETH
KRB ETHRATEREWFRE
RIBRBEZEITHATR

ARIEFESY

HERMTHMEEZARREREZ
BHRENER HHEREECEE
WA ERBEEBMBRSEFESR
RRIEESRZ R AEB G K LR
ZIATMEE-

THREETNAMSNIBEZEE
W T PR ~ BUH = i Ry 4% L FE ST

%

B e
WITETM I ACIEERFE®S
EENEENHEESREES SiHH
FIRESAEMTEMR S  WEAERK
REWIINE AR BN EE
ENMSETLESRIARELNG
@ NEENERNBIENEE
EPEWmERRBIIRFREDRA
HirREFHE D EREMR@mNEE
AR AR 0 R BN B Pl 38 e R R 0

124  S=FEEZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9)  Financial instruments (Continuea)

)

(V)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on re-measurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a financial asset or
a financial liability, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively, any cumulative gain
or loss remains in equity at that time is accounted
for according to the nature of the underlying
transactions (as discussed above) once the
hedged cash flow occurs. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that has been reported in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(0

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

() Package tours

Revenue for package tours is recognised over
time in accounting period in which the control
of services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers enjoy the tour
services.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

()

Revenue recognition (Continuea)

(i)

(i)

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel accommodations, food
and beverage and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised over time
in the accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided to the
customer.

Sales of FIT Products, ancillary travel related
products and services

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”)
packages, individual travel elements (together
with FIT package referred to as “FIT Products”)
such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of
ancillary travel related services, such as, car
rental, travel visa application and travel insurance
arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time
when the booking or arrangement services are
performed or tickets are delivered to and have
been accepted by the customers. The Group is
the agent in these transactions and the revenue is
recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain
transactions, including sales of admission and
transportation tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of the products is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to the customers,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods, the
customers have obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the goods and the Group has
present right to payment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(0

Revenue recognition (Continuea)

(i) Sales of FIT Products, ancillary travel related
proaucts and services (Continueaq)

The Group does not provide any sales-related
warranties. There is no right of return by
customers under the Group’s standard contract
terms, except for sales of certain train tickets.

(v)  Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in Japan. Travel
bus service revenue is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel bus services
are provided to the customer.

(v)  Sale of merchandises

The Group sells goods directly to customers.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
product is transferred to the customers. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchase the product. Discounts
and other cash incentive to customers are
accounted for as reduction of the transaction
prices.

(i) Other income

Commission income is recognised when the
goods or services on which the commission is
calculated are delivered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Conitract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains right to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
transfer goods or provide services to the customer.
The combination of those rights and performance
obligations give rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. Contract
liabilities are recognised for services to be provided to
customers represented by the excess of consideration
received from the customers according to agreed
customer billing schedules over cumulative revenue
recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

0

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

()  Income tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except

when they relate to items recognised in other

comprehensive income in which case the taxes are

also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments

with original maturities of three months or less that are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.

()  Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits

(other than termination benefits) that are expected to

be settled wholly before twelve months after the end

of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the

related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under

which the Group pays fixed contributions into a

separate entity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to
the maximum mandatory contributions as required
by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.



iR BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4

HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEEHHEE @

()

1EE BT 4

FERT R N1 E] (8B)
FABERFEEENNBATNESYA
2 N ER A B Ja8 1% R = i 2 TR IR IR = 51 2
(TEZKBRKRESE) -ZNWBRABLRZ
ETEOLEMNEEIEMBEREAKREE
EH MM e FEBER I HEREHET
RIS MMEE-

FABEREARKLME ((HE) EE/
B A BB E B2 I0M T5 ™ BU &
ZHRREBAREE (HREBAEEE) o
ZWNB AR ARETAEDLENEETLSE
MR REBAREEIFHHER AEBN X
TRERBREERAAREE

REMREBARTENEEERTINEER
HARES KB REE R B HARS > 18 m P FESD
e

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

()

Employee benefits (Continuea)
Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in Japan are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by a government-
affiliated corporation (the “National Pension Scheme”).
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the National
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(m)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;

— interests in associates; and

- prepayments

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the cash generating
unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

cash generating unit.

(n)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

(0) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(0) Related parties (Continueq)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(0

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(0

(o)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for staff costs already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and reducing the staff cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

@

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vested. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

() Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(e). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
provision matrix is determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. The ECLs of other receivables is determined
based on 12-month ECLs because there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
In making the judgement, management considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information such as actual or expected significant
adverse changes in business and customers’ financial
position. At every reporting date the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed by the management.
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5. TEGsHEETRFIE @

(i)
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HREE I EEERAZEFEERESD
BRETERAYE-

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(v)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Classification of freehold land and hotel building

As disclosed in note 14 in respect of the freehold land,
hotel buildings and hot spring bath building, these
items are not classified as investment properties as the
Group retains significant risks of running the business,
i.e. exposure to variation in the future cash flows
generated by the operations. Although the Group has
outsourced day-to-day administrative functions to a
hotel management company, the Group is not a purely
passive investor. Accordingly, management considered
that these items should be classified as owner-
occupied property.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

)

(V)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

Judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or value-in-use, which is the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions used,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis and its validity
depends on the successful implementation of the
measures disclosed in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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6. DEPEHRS
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AIEH D2 A o AEBU NIRRT
DEEL T MIEE T cEEERA 0 D ELHT
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vii)  Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the
lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. In determining the
lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable
terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.

6. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
changed its identification of reportable segments. The Group
separates “Sale of Merchandises Business” from “Travel
Related Business”. In the opinion of the Board, the revised
basis of segment identification provides a more appropriate
presentation of the segment information.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continuea)

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

° Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

° Sale of merchandises (“Sale of Merchandises
Business”)

° Hotel operation (“Hotel Business”)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income,
gains and losses, selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other operating expenses, share of results of associates and
finance costs directly attributable to each operating segment.
Central administrative costs are not allocated to the
operating segments as they are not included in the measure
of the segment results that are used by the chief operating
decision-makers for assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including cash at banks and on hand, tax
recoverable and certain prepayments and other receivables
which are not directly attributable to the business activities
of operating segments as these assets are managed on
a group basis. Likewise, segment liabilities exclude loans
from a related company and corporate liabilities, such as
certain accruals and other payables, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segments and not allocated to segments.
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6. DEPIRE @
@ EEIE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments

MREEEREYR BRIHEER BIEER #st
Travel Sale of
Related Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
FET FET FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HZE2022512831H For the year ended
IFE 31 December 2022:

Wz Revenue
REIINDEE From external customers 129,221 20,936 46,322 196,479
RE Dz W m Inter-segment revenue (1,531) — 1,531 -
o 2R D P Reportable segment revenue 127,690 20,936 47,853 196,479
A 2RHE (F518) /EF Reportable segment (loss)/profit (23,851) 269 (43,580) (67,162)
M HE MR EITE Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment (3,166) (226) (37,070) (40,462)
TREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (19,820) - = (19,820)
i A=UNCIES: Share of results of associates (238) - - (238)
B Finance costs (1,646) - (4,010) (5,656)
PRSI R Income tax credit 5,455 172 11,070 16,697
AE2RNHEE Reportable segment assets 327,832 13,828 544,760 886,420
E2RAHER Reportable segment liabilities 226,352 3,486 368,737 598,575
REFERBEE Additions to non-current assets 304 679 537 1,520
LB E AT BEFE Share of net assets of associates 8,096 = = 8,096
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6. DEPRE @

@ ZEETE @B

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

IREEREEYR BRiEEER BIEER 4t
Travel Sale of
Related  Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
FHET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E2021%E12831H For the year ended
LFE: 31 December 2021:
s Revenue
REINEER From external customers 12,968 17,504 14,106 44578
2R Bk E Reportable segment revenue 12,968 17,504 14,106 44,578
A2HD I (B58) wF Reportable segment (loss)/profit (116,613) 1,418 (69,392) (184,587)
M BERREBITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (6,755) (43) (51,700) (58,498)
EREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (23,737) = = (23,737)
3 A=YNGE S| Share of results of associates (513) = - (513)
MEMRE Finance costs 2,162) - (4,845) (7,007)
PREMIE % Income tax credit 20,559 = 22,349 42,908
ERNHEE Reportable segment assets 175,633 7,478 649,912 833,023
AEHRDFERE Reportable segment liabilities 88,321 2,925 417,273 508,519
REFRBEE Additions to non-current assets 11,567 426 687 12,680
ELHME AR EEFE Share of net assets of associates 9,900 = = 9,900
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6. DEPIRE @

b AEZHDEWm Em BEEREEZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

HER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2022 2021
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wz Revenue
A 2F DW= Reportable segment revenue 196,479 44578
Rl Consolidated revenue 196,479 44,578
2022 2021
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
PRETSMIAIESIE Loss before income tax
A 2FDEEIE Reportable segment loss (67,162) (184,587)
H AU a5 28 Other gain, net 115 1,327
ME A Finance costs (17,002) (7,847)
Ao ERE Unallocated corporate expenses (8,147) (8,226)
PRPTEMRAI AR S B 18 Consolidated loss before income tax (92,196) (199,333)
2022 2021
TFAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AEFRDMBEE Reportable segment assets 886,420 833,023
RO XEE Unallocated corporate assets 18,636 72,092
EOREE Consolidated total assets 905,056 905,115
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6. DERIRE = 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continuea)
b) BIZHDE W 1B EEREEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
HER (48 profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continuead)
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
=i Liabilities
AZ2®NHBER Reportable segment liabilities 598,575 508,519
RPETEER Unallocated corporate liabilities 286,012 274,302
REMEs Consolidated total liabilities 884,587 782,821
© iz Er (c) Geographic information
TREFAEEKRBIBE L B WD KPR The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
EMEEMELEREBEESE (BFEMNIERS revenue from external customers and non-current
BE)) INIFEREE E DT - assets other than financial assets and deferred tax

assets (“Specified non-current assets”):

REIMIE B BIK S HENFERBEE
(BREBEREME ) (RERMEMESD)
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
(by customer location) (by physical location)
2022 2021 2022 2021
FTAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
HAEMEM Hong Kong and Macau
(PR 7E3H) (place of domicile) 145,865 29,394 21,860 31,301
HZR Japan 50,614 15,184 468,226 575,844
Hith Others - - 8,169 9,853
196,479 44,578 498,255 616,998
FTEMTD 2 EREBR A EHZ R The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
BARIBAEEREBEPOMMETMET place the Group regards as its hometown, has the

majority of operation and centre of management.
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6. DEHRE @

©

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

@ BHELTEEFZER (d) Information about a major customer
REE2022FE12B31HIEEE » mEEH The Group did not have any single customer
EAME—FPLERMAEEI10%MN EWm contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue

(20214 : ) during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
W as 5 HF (e) Disaggregation of revenue
il e HRHEER BIEER w5t
Travel Related Sale of Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
TET TEx FEx FTEx TRz TEx  FTER  TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEMETHE Primary geographical markets
EAMRM Hong Kong and Macau
(R ) (place of domicile) 124,929 11,890 20,936 17,504 - - 145,865 29,394
HA& Japan 2,761 1,078 - - 47,853 14,106 50,614 15,184
127,690 12,968 20,936 17,504 47,853 14,106 196,479 44,578
W g SR R Timing of revenue recognition
BSERh At a point in time 19,359 5,234 20,936 17,504 - - 40,295 22,738
EREER Transferred over time 108,331 7,734 - - 47,853 14,106 156,184 21,840
127,690 12,968 20,936 17,504 47,853 14,106 196,479 44,578
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7. WEKREMUA WS R ESEREE 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET
W EERTE S RTHEBES RHEHR Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,
BEEEMEEEREHNERERE;, BERTE®R ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental and
e B M RIT AR ISP BN IE 358 ; MM ancillary services; the net proceeds from FIT Products and
HE AFEEEINETEWZ BN SREEY ancillary travel related services; and sale of merchandises.
W The amounts of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year are as follows:
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
I &= Revenue
HR1T Package tours 108,331 7,734
BHTER (#at) FIT Products (note) 6,340 2,755
BN % SR1T AR RE = fm A AR TS Ancillary travel related products and services
(Hiz2) (note) 13,019 2,479
A miE & Sale of merchandises 20,936 17,504
A E R B &R Hotel room rental and ancillary services 47,853 14,106
196,479 44 578
Vo2 Note:
AEEEHRTERRERE THEEMRTHEBREEEN The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary travel
KRB RAEAREERREEANRBNNIRE > B related services is considered as cash collected on behalf of
A BN EEWFT SN IB4EEEU FFA T - principals as an agent, and thus recorded on a net basis. The gross
proceeds received and receivable are as follows:
2022 2021
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B U R FE U P 18 TR IE 48 28 Gross proceeds received and receivable 66,343 19,808
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7.

W R EMIRA - W R EEERE @ 7.

TREIEMEZBURAKBEEREHNNG

LOSSES, NET (Continueaq)

<

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

The following table provides information about trade

HNEENER receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:

120224 1220214
12831H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
TFAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B SRR (H1a£19) Trade receivables (note 19) 6,766 3,210
BREa’E Bito4) Contract liabilities (note 24) 100,887 12,161
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

HAMUA ~ Wi R k51873 K8 Other income, gains and losses, net
PE 2 51875 %8 Exchange loss, net (3,511) (2,703)
BEIBUTA Handling income 631 305
RITIERF EWA Interest income on bank deposits 279 18
HIFUW A Sundry income 659 2,175
HEREE WS Gain on rental concession of lease 1,844 3,070
B e B WA Government sponsor income 5,789 8,139
ERZ RN E Gain on modification of loan payment 229 309
3t 78 1 =R 2 [ Reversal of written off of prepayment 24,498 =
30,418 11,313
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8. PRRR1FHRAIESIE 8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

MREF BB EELINRE Gt A) U TFTEERY Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

expenses”.
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2022 2021

THET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

12 25 B &7 B Auditors’ remuneration 1,644 1,592
MEE TR 7R Written off of prepayments and

HpE UL ER> other receivables* = 33,558
B EKER Y Bad debts written off in respect of

B2 1= AR trade receivables* 105 =
BRARTNEERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 14,720 13,531
ME-BERREITE Depreciation on property, plant

and equipment 40,462 58,498
EREEEITE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 19,820 23,737
HEMZE BEKRRE Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

B8 () FEE* plant and equipment, net* 7 (69)
KIETAEEE - (W) Loss/(gain) on termination of lease* 242 (37)
B A Finance costs

—HEaRELEN - Interest expense incurred on

B (Hfa£15) lease liabilities (note 15) 1,307 1,940

—TESHIEEEW — Interest expense incurred on

MEMXZ derivative financial instruments 263 352
—FBERAREREEN — Interest expense incurred on
BB loans from a related company 17,002 7,847
—IRTTEREED - Interest expense incurred on
FEMZ bank borrowings 4,086 4,715
22,658 14,854
BEMZA (B1EMF128 Employee costs (including directors’

EEEH) - emoluments in note 12):

— = REMEYEF — Salaries and other benefits in kind 62,755 57,731

—BIRETEHER — Retirement scheme contributions 2,307 2,575

65,062 60,306
* FrEsZER XAl i B * All these expenses are recorded as “other operating
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9. FRiSHHIER

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT

2022 2021
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNEARRIE —F A H [ Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—AREFEERIB — Tax for the year 64 50
—BEEE (B%) 2% — (Oven/under-provision in respect of
BiE prior year (35) 80
29 130
IRIEFRIE Deferred tax
—RAEREEB@ETA — Credit to profit or loss for the year
Biz£17) (note 17) (16,726) (43,038)
(16,697) (42,908)
BEHEHENEBHERIEENEE NHEE The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
HENEEBATRHEETMNIINERSE & the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the
N EREHENENEBHAT REEETER, Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman
U ZA T AN FR I o Islands and the BVI respectively.
B E2022F K%2021E12831H IEEE » (h5HFE Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
TR R B E 2,000,000 T0128.25% st EH A HK$2.0 million of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
FIEF » M hsHELIEH 182,000,000 75 for the portion of the estimated assessable profits above
B 45 BI3216.5% 51 E o & T B M4k &5 & HK$2.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
BN EBRSENZEMN M MEEERNERZIZ16.5% 2021. The profit of group entities not qualifying for the two-
HIFR R 0 tiered profits tax rates regime continued to be taxed at

16.5% for both years.
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gl

FRISIRIER =

B ZE2022F 12831 LEE  RFIFFERE TR
TARERPIE ERN KB A B MG st BT iia
FMF12% (20214 1 12%) I Z 5+ & - & £2022
F12B31HIEFE  AEERBRPISENHB A
B 4 E A L 5T FE SRR B A (20214 ¢ ) o

HZE2022F12831HIEEFEE  PEH B EFRER
ThRIEP P EEENK B QBN Gt ETER R
F3225% (20214F 1 25%) IR 5t 8 o & FE2022
F12A31BIEEE AEBRTEEENHBA
5 43 4 A A (i 5T FE ST AR B A (20214F & f®) ©

REXEENKNBARBHMB RN EFRSE
M HMEFGZERNEHENREREEER (T
X ITHARMBHR) > ZERIBERE E20224F
12B31HIEFERBTAZE RENEER
MEREEMERNEN F4L30.6%E434.6%
(20214 : #930.6%E#J34.6%)  # E20224F
12831 HIEFE > AEBR B EENH B AR
R A A st FEST AR F] (20214 & ) o

154 =iF#ERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

<

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2021:
12%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in Macau for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in Macau for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2021:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to corporate
income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes
and business tax (hereinafter collectively referred to
as “Japan Profits Tax”) in Japan, which, in aggregate,
resulted in effective statutory income tax rates ranging
from approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6% (2021:
approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6%) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiaries operating in Japan for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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9. FhiSHiiERE @ 9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
RERARIFENFERIEE R T tEEYHER Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting
W loss at applicable tax rates:

2022 2021
FAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRPT1SIRBIES 18 Loss before income tax (92,196) (199,333)
BEBHERE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20214 : 16.5%) s HWRIA 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (15,212) (32,890)
REMBEEEEREEMNME AT Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
ZTW@*E’J@?‘%% operating in other jurisdictions (7,999) (9,696)
AEHIRIEENR B E Tax effect of non-deductible items 3,122 4,933
BAFREENRETE Tax effect of non-taxable items (2,182) (6,8006)
AEREREERBNREEE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised 10 419
EEEED REGRNRBTE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 5,461 1,006
BERERRIBEEIRERA Tax effect of previously unrecognised
BEEREEENRBLE tax losses now recognised as
deferred tax assets - (169)
BEEE (B FEmEEE (Over)/under-provision in prior year (35) 80
HAth Others 138 215
(16,697) (42,908)
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10. BREE 10. LOSS PER SHARE
2022 2021
TFETT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
K518 Loss
NATBER ANELER Loss attributable to owners of the Company (74,299) (155,635)
2022 2021
T T
’000 ‘000
S8 E Number of shares
ZmREE Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450
B E2022F K2021F12831HIEFE > AR F Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per
S SE R NS IR B R E SRR E K share as the Company had no dilutive potential shares during
E51EHE[E © the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
1. 8 11. DIVIDENDS
EREIAEZIRNEE2022F12831HIEFEERN The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend
EAIRE B (20214F : ) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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12. EEHMN

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

SEHFMNIEEWT Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:
HERHEAM HiER
BEMET RIREL R E
ik (Hrita) (hiztb) R 4ot
Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b) contributions Total
TER TET THET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2022
HiTEE Executive directors
RXHE Yuen Man Ying - 719 - 22 M
BEE Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,144 - 43 1,187
23 Leung Shing Chiu - 1,093 - 42 1,135
FES Lee Po Fun - 1,167 - 44 1,211
] Yuen Ho Yee - 819 - 18 837
BEE Cheang Chuen Hon - 1,252 - 18 1,270
- 6,194 - 187 6,381
BUFHITEE Indlependent non-executive directors
BRizE Chan Kim Fai 202 - - - 202
(59 Tang Koon Hung Eric 185 - - - 185
=EH Wong Lai Ming 174 - - - 174
561 - - - 561
561 6,194 - 187 6,942
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12. EXHMN @

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

e REAM HER
BER RIATEAL RREE
ik (Hizta) (Hfzto) =R st
Salaries  Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
TET TET TEL TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
2021
HITEZE Executive directors
A Yuen Man Ying - 468 = 25 493
BEZ Huen Kwok Chuen - 855 = 36 891
2 s Leung Shing Chiu - 838 - 36 874
FES Lee Po Fun - 862 - 36 898
=AEE W) Yuen Ho Yee (note ¢) = 345 = 11 356
BEE (Hztc) Cheang Chuen Hon (note ¢) - 699 - 11 710
= 4,067 = 155 4,222
BUHHTEE Inclependent non-executive directors
BRzE Chan Kim Fai 202 - - - 202
gtk Tang Koon Hung Eric 185 = - - 185
=ER Wong Lai Ming 174 = = = 174
561 - - - 561
561 4,067 - 155 4,783
Mt - Notes:
() HEHREEAEREFENREMEATHNITE (@)  Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable to

E2FHEREMBEYET -

() BMBERXRBLEADSEFAEARRIEHFMES
EgHEMEE -

© REBEKBEFESEZER/RITES B2021
F5H28H BT ZRRBERGHEREE

d) REZE2022F12B31BLEEE KAT NG
(20214F : ;"%) EEEMEH 493,304,000
7T (20214F : 4,443,000 7T) °
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executive directors of the Company in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.

The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by the
remuneration committee.

Yuen Ho Yee and Cheang Chuen Hon have been appointed
as Executive Directors with effect from the conclusion of the
AGM held on 28 May 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, six (2021: six)
directors of the Company have waived emoluments of
approximately HK$3,304,000 (2021: HK$4,443,000).
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13. AAmREHMAL

rEELLESHFMALTH M4 (20214F 1 1
%) RARABES WENMEHE N EXHEE12
Mok F—% (20214 | —%) ALRIBNZWT ¢

13.

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2021: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2021: one)
individual were as follows:

2022 2021

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

e RHEMEYET] Salaries and other benefits in kind 871 839
1B R ZRIZIEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 209 110
RORETEIHR Retirement scheme contributions 18 18
1,098 967

REHMIFEE A LRFINEEIT ¢

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within
the following band:

2022 2021

A N

Number of Number of

Individual Individual

£ %1,000,00078 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 75 £ 1,500,000/ 75 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 —

ENSECITEREEEAS FEEAATE
%) WHEHBEDT :

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2022 2021

AE A#

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

=% 1,000,00078 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
20224 % Annual Report 2022 159
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14. ¥ BB Rl

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAKE BER  HEME FER
i HitrgF & HARE EER HE BE&E st
Hotel
Freehold and other Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
and buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
i Thn TEn FEL Thn TEn FEL TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
12021515818 At 1 January 2021
A Cost 226,539 343,674 242,159 39,249 43,714 21,755 24,563 941,663
RiME Accumulated depreciation - (11,106) (140,735) (17,832) (39,070) (16,459) (12,301) (237,509)
REFE Net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21417 4,644 5,296 12,262 704,150
HE2021512B31BLEE For the year ended
31 December 2021
FNREFE Opening net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21,417 4,644 5,206 12,262 704,150
RE Additions - - 86 205 1,332 342 687 2,652
i} Disposal - - - (1) (160) (21) - (182)
e Depreciation - (6,481) (37,823) (5,073) (2,371) (3,386) (3,364) (68,498)
ERHE Exchange adjustment (22,866) (33,267) (8,083) (1,878) (10) (352) (1,458) (67,884)
FRREFE Closing net carrying amount 208,673 292,820 55,634 14,670 3,435 1,879 8,127 580,238
120215125318 At 31 December 2021
N Cost 203,673 308,985 221,705 36,864 44542 19,396 23,121 88,286
ZHiE Accumulated depreciation - (16,165  (166,071) (22,194) (41,107) (17,517) (14994) (278,048
REFE Net carrying amount 203,673 292,820 56,634 14,670 3,435 1,879 8,127 580,238
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14. MZE-BWER=E @

<

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continueqd)
KAEHE BER HENE HER
14 HftigF ®E WARME BHRE "E BEkE Eh)
Hotel
Freehold and other  Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
Thn Thn THn Thn Thn TAn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2022F12831HILEE For the year ended
31 December 2022
ENRERE Opening net carrying amount 203,673 292,820 55,634 14,670 3,435 1,879 8,127 580,238
HE Additions - - 736 165 123 - 496 1,520
HE Disposal - - - U] - - - m
i Depreciation - (5,518) (25,247) (4,130) (1,326) (1,513) (2,728) (40,462)
ERER Exchange adjustment (24,777) (35,531) (6,093) (1,647) ) (115) (1,329) (69,491)
FRREFE Closing net carrying amount 178,896 251,771 25,030 9,051 2,207 251 4,572 471,798
12022128318 At 31 December 2022
A Cost 178,896 271,397 199,680 34,236 44,629 17,155 21,288 767,281
RAE Accumulated depreciation - (19,626) (174,650) (25,185) (42,402) (16,904) (16,716) (295,483)
REFE Net carrying amount 178,896 251,771 25,030 9,051 2,227 251 4,572 471,798

K2022F 128310 AEE B 2R ERERE
fB439178,896,000/& 7t (20214 : 203,673,000
76) ~251,771,00058 75 (20214 © 292,820,000
70) R EH T (20214F : 1,482,0005 ) il it B 7
BIK A ZERE T3 TBE R EMIEF KRR B MIER
NEEERIRITER FT5E25) ©

As at 31 December 2022, freehold land, hotel and other
buildings and motor vehicles of the Group located in
Japan with a net carrying amount of approximately
of HK$178,896,000 (2021: HK$203,673,000),
HK$251,771,000 (2021: HK$292,820,000) and HK$NIl
(2021: HK$1,482,000) respectively, were pledged to secure
the bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).

20224E% Annual Report 2022 161



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F12H31H LEFEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

15. ERAREE THEAR

KEEFFZEEN
AEBRRHEEMEMNE EIERRRNEES
T AR ERBEEUERFTE

FEBRTHEHEETHREARBEEQERES
T -BERRFE BERKEBEZEEEQSE
MBI ERR TR

RAREE
REMEESRN O MNEREEEZREFE
mr

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. The periodic rent is fixed over the
lease term.

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment,
including travel buses and plant and equipment. Leases of
plant and equipment comprise only fixed payments over the
lease terms.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

20224 F20214
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FIEEANEE Leased for own use,

DHTER AT carried at depreciated cost:

HEYZE Rental premises 15,754 20,021
AR Office equipment 2,607 4,921
il i e Travel buses = 1,918
18,361 26,860
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15. FHESE THEAG @

FEEFERAEN @

EHESE (B)

FREREESESHUT

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continueqd)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Movements of right-of-use assets during the year:

HEME WARE HEE L st
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
TAERT TERT THERT TAERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R2021E181H At 1 January 2021 27,009 7,253 6,939 41,201
wE Addition 145 - 81 226
RIEAE Termination of lease (626) - - (626)
e Depreciation (16,305) (2,330) (5,102) (23,737)
HEBIZFE Effect of lease modification 9,803 = = 9,803
[ERAE Exchange adjustment (5) ©) = (7)
#2021F12831A K At 31 December 2021 and
2022F181H 1 January 2022 20,021 4,921 1,918 26,860
HE Addition 4,440 - - 4,440
RIS Termination of lease (4,809) - - (4,809)
& Depreciation (15,589) (2,319) (1,918) (19,820)
HEEITZR 2 Effect of lease modification 11,691 - - 11,691
[ERAE Exchange adjustment - (1) - 1)
120225128318 At 31 December 2022 15,754 2,607 - 18,361
HEEGE LEASE LIABILITIES
RKIKEENMAZIREDIFUWT - The analysis of the present value of future lease payment is
as follows:
202245 20214
12831H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
TAT TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
V=R Current liabilities 38,193 40,071
FEREARE Non-current liabilities 2,805 7,831
40,998 47,902
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15. FREEE HEEGER ® 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
KEFIEAZAFAN &) The Group as a lessee (Continueq)
HESE #®) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
FR-FHEEEZEEFHN T . Movements of lease liabilities during the year:
HEYE NS MREE LT At
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
THERT TAERT TAERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
120211818 At 1 January 2021 28,012 8,057 23,219 59,288
HE Addition 145 - 81 226
BIERE Termination of lease (663) = = (663)
HEEIz3 & Effect of lease modification 9,803 = = 9,803
HERE Interest expense 1,340 448 152 1,940
HERT Lease payments (15,360) (2,743) (1,471) (19,574)
COVID-1918RETA £ B/, (#77£) COVID-19-related rent concessions (note) (3,070) - - (3,070)
fE R A% Exchange adjustment 49) (5) - 48)
20215128318 & At 31 December 2021 and
2022F181H 1 January 2022 20,164 5,757 21,981 47,902
NE Addition 4,440 - - 4,440
RIETE Termination of lease (4,567) - - (4,567)
HEBIZRE Effect of lease modification 11,691 - - 11,691
FSRL Interest expense 994 294 19 1,307
HERT Lease payments (15,095) (2,721) (115) (17,931)
COVID-1918RETA £ &7, (#75£) COVID-19-related rent concessions (note) (1,844) - - (1,844)
1R2022%E12831H At 31 December 2022 15,783 3,330 21,885 40,998
120225128318 At 31 December 2022
HAERY Short term lease expenses - = 5,843 5,843
FEHAHEARFEN Variable payments not included in the
FEHEENR measurement of lease liabilities: 79 5 - 84
1R2021412831H At 31 December 2021
FERTERY Short term lease expenses = = = =
FHAHEGEHEN Variable payments not included in the
EHHENH measurement of lease liabilities: = = = =
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15.

FRESE THEAEG @

FEREEREHEN (8)
HERIE (#
Mg

SEECEERBRTAZEZFEHNEERERE SN
IR EZERB165E 2B FT5| AZRI{TRRE A Flr
BEZE2022F12B31BIEFERGTIIZEEERER
BIEERATTEES A - ERAATER A AEHMA
EaEEEER1,844,0008 7T BV W EE XS
B SR E GG EENARAt ARG

REEENRZERAET ¢

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continueqd)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
Note:

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient introduced
by the amendment to HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions that satisfy
the criteria. All of the rent concessions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2022 satisfy the criteria to apply the practical
expedient. The application of the practical expedient has resulted
in the reduction of total lease liabilities of HK$1,844,000. The effect
of this reduction has been recorded in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Future lease payments are due as follows:

RRBEMN FIB RE
Future
lease
payments Interest  Present value
FTHTT FHET THT
122022512H31H At 31 December 2022 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEBBE—F Not later than one year 38,746 553 38,193
HBE—FRmEUR Later than one year and
not later than two years 2,855 50 2,805
41,601 603 40,998
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15. ERAEEE HEAGE® 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
KEFIEAZAFAN &) The Group as a lessee (Continueq)
HESE @) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
KRB E R FIE HRE
Future lease
payments Interest  Present value
FET FEx FExT
72021FE12831H At 31 December 2021 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BB —F Not later than one year 41,297 1,226 40,071
BB —F KM EURA Later than one year and
not later than two years 7,107 248 6,859
B W F & A E A Later than two years and
not later than five years 988 16 972
49,392 1,490 47,902
16. NREE AT #EE 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2022 2021
TFAT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EIEE EFRE Share of net assets 8,096 9,900
& U B = A B AR R Amount due from an associate 5,542 6,290
B E AR BRRR Amount due to an associate 20 12
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16. REFERXF#E @ 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
@ 2022 F2021F 12831 HRVE = 4 (@) Particulars of associates as at 31 December
=S =2/ 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
MM EEITREY
YNGIEZY A Bt EFEEH
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ interest held
Name of company operations indirectly  Principal activities
RRERITHEBEBR AR (TEGLEE)) EAEl 38% MEEIRMHARRKITE
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (‘EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound

package tours in Korea

TR HEGLHRAE* (TEGLFAE]) HA 38% MHEAHEREAERITE
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* (“EGL Okinawa”)  Japan Provision of inbound

package tours in
Okinawa, Japan

#RgaBE ((BRE) =N 41% REAXRRESHRITE
Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”) Japan Provision of local package

tours in Japan

* s FEE LB * English name for identification purpose only
(b) [EU - TETHEE L\ B8R A5 FEHE (b) Amount due from/to an associate s unsecured,
BERIZERER interest-free and repayable on demand.
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17. BERIBEE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

RAFEELBFFERIERIESEE 2B LS Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements

BT

during the current and prior year are as follows:

/ES REEHE

B0 e
B4 Hth (Hi:z) st

Tax losses

Property, carried

plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total

FTHAT T FTHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

20221811

RAFERTstA (#329)

At 1 January 2022 27,796 56 64,848 92,700

Credit to profit or loss

for the year (note 9)
—EEREREREER — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 5,098 288 11,340 16,726
StAFEARER Credit to equity for the year - (240) - (240)
R Translation adjustment (3,568) 9) (3,107) (6,684)
20225128318 At 31 December 2022 29,326 95 73,081 102,502
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17. IRERIBEE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

/EN MIEEE
TR B K mE
# 1 Hith (H152) AR5t
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total
FATT FET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’ 000
1202151818 At 1 January 2021 21,216 375 32,740 54,331
RARFEEBERFTA W9) Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—EXREOEREER ~ Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 9,007 107 33,924 43,038
STAFRER Credit to equity for the year = (398) = (398)
ERRE Translation adjustment (2,427 28) (1,816) 4,271)
72021F12831H At 31 December 2021 27,796 56 64,848 92,700
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IRERIBEE @

LUR S 54k & 75 E 2 EIEFR IRAG R 9 4

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continuea)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RN IEE E Deferred tax assets 102,502 92,700
Hist - Note:

RABEHAR AEEAREBEERBEEHEBEY
277,237,000 75 (20214 : 245,269,00038 70) » A] &
FREBAEIRSE EEBEMN AT R KEEREN o &
EBMITR AR EERIEREL5,689,000%8 7t (2021
£ 1 4,364,00078 70) IR AEAEHE  FORFIEERIE
E5184914,596,00058 75 (20214 : 11,478,000 7T)
R=FEAREIURR B AREERIEEEL95,129,000
H 7T (20214 © 75,539,00038 7T) i F+4E (20214
+£E) MR AR R AR FESR IR B c R B BB A
VEFMBARIMUKBEARWB AR EEZRIBREE
EPEE B2 IEIERIEE E 9 BI49273,892,0007 7T (2021
£ 241,967,000 7T) ~ 491,329,000 7T (20214 :
1,329,000 7t) L K 4983,526,0007 7T (2021£E :
75,414,000 7T) o hER T2 RINEE (BESE
FI-PE R HAEMKMT B AR EEZRNIBEEE) ﬁ'ﬁé )
AR ZE AT B AR A SEE 4 FEF R & A LUE
THR ARS8 B R T U RIRERIBE & ©
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$277,237,000 (2021:
HK$245,269,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
HK$5,689,000 (2021: HK$4,364,000) that will expire in five years,
tax losses arising in Macau of approximately HK$14,596,000 (2021:
HK$11,478,000) that will expire in three years and tax losses arising
in Japan of approximately HK$95,129,000 (2021: HK$75,539,000)
that will expire in ten years (2021: ten years) for offsetting against
future taxable profits, respectively. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised for tax losses arising from a subsidiary in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$273,892,000 (2021: HK$241,967,000), from
a subsidiary in Macau of approximately HK$1,329,000 (2021:
HK$1,329,000) and from subsidiaries in Japan of approximately
HK$83,526,000 (2021: HK$75,414,000). Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses, including
the tax losses arising from the other subsidiaries in Hong Kong,
Macau, PRC and Japan, as it is not probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.
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18. 7& 18. INVENTORIES
2022 2021
FAT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
A E N E & Merchandise for sale 1,733 2,582
19. ESEIRER 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
TFHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FEUR Trade receivables 6,766 3,210
RBIEXEZEHH  RREHER  ~EB 2B LS EI The ageing analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables as
BRABZEAVBRES D AT E - at the end of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is
as follows:
2022 2021
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 - 90k 0 - 90 days 6,661 2,431
91 - 180k 91 - 180 days 104 91
181 - 365k 181 — 365 days - 68
#BiB365K Over 365 days 1 620
6,766 3,210
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19. B EIER @

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continuea)

AEBFFIATFESZEREERNERE B85
10REOK - RIFFEH > AEEE 5Z EUERAR
FEMERES DATIO T ¢

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables, based on
due date, is as follows:

2022 2021

FET TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

5 A< 380 HA Not vet past due 4,625 1,699

A= 1E B UMW Past due within three months 2,037 801
AEABE=EBE Past due more than three months but

R7E R UR within six months 103 50

BHBEEAE Past due more than six months but
R—FURN within one year 1 660
6,766 3,210

R2022F12H31H BERNEESEEREA £
MEIENREE RAHANE ZEWRRARSE
UEFPAM MEERAEEREEREINIZE
Rtke—mas > AEBW AZEHRERFA
R R EAMME AR o

AEBERAES BN BREERNFSRFETEANG
{EREmFEREEHBEREE  ZRTEATYH
FIEEZ R RRAERATEREERBERME
RITERAGEEEER BZRVERERERRE
ERBEMRERRHMNE -TEREEBIETE
TERIREME R - 1R2022F12H31H A AR EE
RAEMESEVRATHEEFHNEREERE
TWARERK
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The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2022 was the carrying amount mentioned above. Trade
receivables that not yet past due related to a large number
of independent customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. In general, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
palances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information. As at
31 December 2022, the directors of the Company consider
ECLs against the gross amounts of trade receivables are
immaterial.
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20. ;1% FAITR R EHMEURER 20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ERBEE Non-current assets
HE= Deposits 1,679 1,963
FE{TFR Prepayments 349 =
2,028 1,963

MENEE Current assets

HAhE R Other receivables 8,560 8,082
1% (M1at) Deposits (note) 5,148 6,546
SEENEN Prepayments 60,802 27,530
74,510 42,158

RESHPEENESEERRD LMREER
WERAVEREIE - A EB I B A EMIERRES
R

Hfat -
ZEHOREXN T —REAERADAETHNEHETEZH

1,455,0007 7T (20214F : 1,455,000/ 7T) ° %] & A&
HIFE R E RN E R EE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amounts of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Note:
The amount included rental deposits paid to a related company,
Great Port, of approximately HK$1,455,000 (2021: HK$1,455,000).

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the end
of the rental periods.
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21. IRMIRITERURIRITERREFR 21

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT

e BANKS AND ON HAND
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITER Cash at banks 203,567 135,574
EBEERE Cash on hand 8,868 2,885
212,435 138,459
B IERIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (8,135) (8,326)

HEMBERRITZ Cash at banks and on hand per

BT EFNREFRE consolidated statement of financial position 204,300 130,133

FAEENRERREEEBYEEENRSBIRT
FERF e Rt SRIRITTE RN ZE T
MIBFEFBENRHIRTENR R2022F128
318 HEMENF0.01%ZE2.75% (20214 :
0.01%ZE2.75%) > BRI FBHAR A =@ U Ao

R2022F 12831 A&EBE TRITEFERD
8,135,000 7T (20214F : 8,326,000 7T) 1K iR 44
RIT TEEREBRREIEEANETE=HA
(R RV IR B R EE BRI T B RBIIER ©
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The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
pbank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 2.75% (2021: 0.01% to 2.75%) per annum as at
31 December 2022, with an original maturity of three months
or less.

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$8,135,000 (2021:
HK$8,326,000) were pledged to banks as securities mainly
for letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on
behalf of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of
the Group.
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22,

23.

B Z R

BRAMRNEEMNRELTRHEEEMD
HFREREMAE > BERIREIOKR - REBERH
NMERNES @BERERAH—  NREBR
R AEEEZREMRNEREDOTNT ¢

22. TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and
goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the

ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 - 90k 0 - 90 days 13,669 3,070
91 - 180k 91 — 180 days 199 30
181 - 365k 181 — 365 days 673 83
#BiB365K Over 365 days 1,041 2,037
15,582 5,220

FEst N IE R H{thFE{BR 23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
2022 2021
THET FH&7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEstFIA Accrued expenses 21,322 11,853
HAMEER Other payables 25,464 11,653
46,786 23,506
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24. &G 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEEELR Contract liabilities arising from:
IR 2 A8 B ZE 75 Travel Related Business
—RITE -BHETERK — Sales of package tours, FIT Products
RITHERERHEE and travel related products 100,537 11,652
—REIFRITINS — Unexpired discount vouchers 341 503
AL TS Hotel Business 9 6
100,887 12,161
HENEBESREENEE Y — RS MESHWT Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:
@ JIRLEIERETE (a) Travel Related Business
) T~ BT E SRR TIE R E ()  Sales of package tours, FIT Products and travel
HE related products
EHEEAHRATPIRER R Contract liabilities represent advance payments
EmEAENAERERAR  INE received from customers for services that have
R ZIENMRC not yet been performed to the customers or the

control of the products have not been transferred
to the customers.

REFBHER —FHURTME @RI The Group expects to deliver the goods or
BEHRFUBITZESHNEEZEGT services to satisfy the remaining obligations of
FEHo these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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24, EEE®

@ KRR (&)

(b)

(i)

KEVEFHTHIZ

AEEBE TR RHIREBBES
s - AERETUILBEERIREK
w4 B B RRIMIRTT B S AR IT IR RA = fA
ZEAREN BRENZBHNEFTH
HRBLEBRZEI/ENER-
GHAREREFRBERRBEMIR
75 IRy 2 EL B AR B 5B 2 ik o

R2022F12H31H » D EC 2 B K | HA
MINSEBZG TRBARKENR 58
TR ABEE A 49341,000%8 7T (20214 .
503,000787T) » R ZEMINHFE N
BHAZHRER  AEEKNR =+
18 B R rE 2% Y ©

BJEEES
BREERERRE P REAERER

WENE R Z FAf R e

FEFERPR —FHUAARRERBUET
REGHNERZB TER

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continuea)

@ Travel Related Business (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Unexpired discount vouchers

The Group provides discount vouchers to certain
customers for Travel Related Business. The
Group determines this offer represents a material
right to purchase additional package tours or
travel related products in the future two years
and recognised as a contract liability based on
the relative stand-alone price of the performance
obligations in the contract. The contract liability
recognises as revenue when the customer
redeems it for goods or services or when it
expires.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation in connection to the
unexpired discount vouchers is approximately
HK$341,000 (2021: HK$503,000) and the Group
will recognise this revenue within 24 months
as the discount vouchers are effective for 24
months.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments

received from customers for hotel services that have

not yet been rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the
remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within
one year or less.
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24, EEE® 24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

TREVEHNERZES !

The table below details movements in contract liabilities:

2022 2021
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M®1818 At 1 January 12,161 18,215
A FERR A AN FEE W Decrease in contract liabilities as
GtAFEMEHNER) a result of recognising revenue
mEmafNaatz b during the year that was included in
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (3,129) (4,488)
ARFEESLIBEM Decrease in contract liabilities as
BEREHNEERD a result of contract modification
in the current year (3,427) (3,934)
(A= 25 A8 BE = 75 BB IS 275 Increase in contract liabilities as
TR (FBERAEE a result of billing in advance of
ERRAWNGRZIEE) Travel Related Business and Hotel
MERESNaEZIEN Business, excluding those recognised
as revenue in the current year 95,282 2,368
®12831H At 31 December 100,887 12,161
25. RITEX 25. BANK BORROWINGS
2022 2021
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
TREN Current
IRITER B Bank borrowings, secured 213,601 239,677
JETREN Non-current
IRITER BIRH Bank borrowings, secured 151,765 180,441
365,366 420,118
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25. IRITIER @ 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

2022124311 » 49365,366,0007 7T (2021
£F 1 420,118,000 75) BVIRTTE RIS 72 BILLABER
M {E49430,667,00058 7T (20214 : 497,975,000
B7t) (MsE14) 494,359,000 75 (20214
4,630,00077T) (Mfst21) B TYZE B E KR
BRI IR IRITFRAEIR IR o LS ZFIRITRER
& h493,070,0007 7t (20214 : 3,486,00078 7T)
TDH—XEBAWBATMN — 2RI dFERREZ
I EIR IR o

BOREBNMERGRZZHBBGRZRR &
> AEEEREE TEETBERRIZH -1
202212831 "REBE W KR EITEHIBITEI L
B &4 FT iR E B 49208,808,00078 7T (1220214
12831H : 228,554,000/ 70) AMEEENEEL
M3  RIERILZHER RITERBES
HNERAEEVREEREENENE KER
EERIN2022F 12831 H &2021F12831H 275!
BnEasEe

R2023F 18120 » AEBEIRITHR RET L
EBXR > ZABEERNELEEA193,808,000/8 7T &
E20283F1B12HEDEAIEREBE-

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$365,366,000 (2021: HK$420,118,000)
were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment and pledged bank deposits with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$430,667,000
(2021: HK$497,975,000) (note 14) and approximately
HK$4,359,000 (2021: HK$4,630,000) (note 21) respectively.
In addition, among these bank borrowings, an amount of
approximately HK$3,070,000 (2021: HK$3,486,000) was
also secured by a property of a former non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in Japan.

Some of the Group’s facilities letters are subjected to
covenant clauses, whereby the Group is required to meet
certain key financial ratios and covenants. The Group did not
fulfill the financial covenants as required in the contracts with
the banks for the outstanding loan amounts of approximately
HK$203,808,000 as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31
December 2021: HK$228,554,000). Due to this breach of
the covenant clause, the banks are contractually entitled to
request for immediate repayment of the outstanding loan
amounts. The outstanding balances were presented as
current liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.

On 12 January 2023, the Group obtained a waiver of
compliance with the covenant requirement from the
bank for the outstanding loan amounts of approximately
HK$193,808,000. The loans were classified as non-current
liabilities from 12 January 2023 onward.
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25. IRITER @

25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

BITERBEAABE IMEESNEIZE The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,

(ERLAR) st HENBAERA B 5 1a# M A net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently

& o measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
WITEDEBRAEREN RO 79%E1.67% The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
(20214 : 0.79%ZFE1.67%) IR At E o amortised cost using effective interest rate of 0.79% to
1.67% (2021: 0.79% to 1.67%) per annum.
REBREHR RITEREER T REEE At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings
TNERER . were scheduled to repay as follows:
2022 2021
FAET TET
DIUMT B - Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$'000
—FERFIZER Within one year or on demand 213,601 239,677
—FEL EERBEmE Over one year, but within two years 6,738 7,655
MEU EEFRBIE A F Over two years, but within five years 20,301 23,062
AEME Over five years 124,726 149,724
365,366 420,118
=2 Note:
EBEERP R ERIE ISR ETENTEE RS The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are based on

BEASIT -

the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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25. IRITIER @& 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

202212831 B IRITAEFHFBFHY W T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 are

stated below:

i3 GilES ERHR
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$’000
LAEENER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (*JPY’) 193,808 FHEA={ERH BR+TER
RRBTRERS B
M EER%=1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years
Offered Rate
+1.0% per annum
L HEENER Loan denominated in JPY 3,070 B EEF = BRAER
1.2% BE
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years

N BEHER SR

Loan denominated in JPY

158,488 FHEXH=ARH

BRZ+RER

RRBOIFERS B

M EERZ20.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+ 0.5% per annum
LUBTTEHENER Loan denominated in HK$ 10,000 FHEA—ELH BR=+ER
ERRTAERS fBiE

M EER%=1.5%
1-month HIBOR Payable within
+1.5% per annum 30 days
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25. SRITIE™ @

R2021F12H31 HVIRITEARFBEI AT -

25.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 are

stated below:

A% GilE:S ERHAR
Principal amount Interest rate Repayment terms
TET
HK$'000

NBEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 220554 FRIERH=(EAH AR+ ZER
BRBTRERS BE

M EEFZ1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
MBEEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 3,486 ElE F 7% ARRER
1.2% B
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years
M BEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 188,078 FHEA=(EAH BRTHAER
RRFITEZERS BE

£ FHZ0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+0.5% per annum
MATHENER Loan denominated in HK$ 8,000 FHEA—(EAH ARATEA
BAERTRAERS B

M EERZ1.5%
1-month HIBOR Payable within
+ 1.5% per annum 90 days
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26.

27.

e

R2022F K%20215F12H31H > st BANEEY
¥ ZBEMAFMIEHNES  NIREREGRHRN
HAERNEEZHEYEEHRAE R ING
SRS o 3 BRI 1B B BT A 5 AR HR A4S SR By
EERNRAERE-

TTEEMIA

R2022F 123 1H  AEBRFELEZENE
%849115,762,0007% 7t (491,962,400,000H [&])
(20214 : 155,757,000 75 (492,319,200,000
HE)) WARIEFEHEEEF == 85 LUR D
MEFHHEHASEFZIHHERRFETEHERY
115,762,000 7T (491,962,400,000H [B]) BIF
o ZHHIEN2019FE1B4H £ Em B A
2023128318 °

R2022F12831H  AEEBIZFEEREG
NARBRNREREERTE MARBEY
1,154,00078 FTTIE E E 75 (20214F : 533,00078 7T)
R REERARIL ©

122022F 12831 H AR F A K= AR A R EE
B—RBUBXGEA BN SIRIKT L
BERABFHAE -FXERNARBERETE
Bt R AIRENRRIERAGNSINENEERT
RE S NIREARK RSO G WIS M
AL

26.

27.

PROVISION

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was a provision
for reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan,
which relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease term
in accordance with the lease terms. The main uncertainty
relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end
of the lease term.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding
floating-to-fixed interest rate swap with a notional contract
amount of approximately HK$115,762,000 (approximately
JPY1,962,400,000) (2021: HK$155,757,000 (approximately
JPY2,319,200,000)) to reduce the impact of interest rate
fluctuation on the secured floating-rate bank borrowings
of approximately HK$115,762,000 (approximately
JPY1,962,400,000) in Japan. The swap started on 4 January
2019 with a maturity date on 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recognised such
interest rate swap contract as an effective cash flow hedge
with fair value of approximately HK$1,154,000 (2021:
HK$533,000) on the asset side deferred in equity.

The fair value of the outstanding interest rate swap as at
31 December 2022 was valued by Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers. The fair value of interest rate swap is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
observable interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
the swap counterparties.
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28.

22

R 7 28. SHARE CAPITAL
HE EEE
Number Amount
T FHET
‘000 HK$’000
ETE Authorised
R EEO. 18772 ZER Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
7R2021FE1B1H ~2021FE K& At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
20225%12H31H and 2022 1,000,000 100,000
HE EEE
Number Amount
T FHET
‘000 HK$’000
EETRBEZZER Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
R2021F181H ~ 2021 F & At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021
2022 12H31H and 2022 502,450 50,245
EXE 29. RESERVES
RNEBREEFS  HIEHN G REEEFRA - Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
EEANHEEERENNT out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:
K17z 1E Share premium

FERRN GERERARBDETROPAERIE
BRETATBEETRNEEZSD

=]
FEESHFEEERNBARDZREMEER
EENBARNNERITRAEEZBENEE

BZERA
EXRABFERR IS KRB QF E
WESMNRZBHNEEMESHN D  ARFS
s 2 REMEE35(b) °
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The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Capital Contribution

Capital contribution represented benefits received by the
Group arising from the differences between market interest
rates and preferential interest rates charged by a related
company. Please refer to note 35(b) for detail.
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29. {#1E @ 29. RESERVES (continued)

SMNE (g

AEBPIINERBREREBINEZ RBEAQT
REABETNERHERTERR-

HPE
HEECEREBENFE4QVIFFHREREBY
RPN 5T IER » IS FE RSP E R IR 2R 2 A1 A
REEREBH AN P TARAEBERFE
FBBERED ©

A E 1
AEBYZEZERBEBRERMAEMAIN -—RE
RMEBABREERITH (BFT) BRATE
Ho

RIFBRPI(RIAE ) 37715 B AR AR ER
Do5% iR B RMIEREEFEE  BEEREBETZ
NEIBEA50% I 7K I 0 120224 K 2021412 8
1B AEHEEINEB AR RAMNS50%  ZoA
EREBERATRIED K

RIEFREABE RRERITH (R BRAE

(RAEFMRILZHBAR) BRFEEEER
BEF (CIREATFEBER) BE10%EEE
RET BEEEHESHRBEIEEAMELN
50%FF BIAEBEER SIEHE— T BE  LATEH
Her ARIEHEBFEESIBTIEMEMESR-
R ZELACHBENERTHRABRRER
FE BRI s M E A AY50%7K 3 o B E2022F K
2021912831 B L FE » WESERTH CRID B
RABBEEL R

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
note 4(g)(vii).

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, there was no profit generated by EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.
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30.

186

FERetEStE

RNBIRM BB HE ST B (T5HE)) 722014411
B13HERER I o

stEIBAE T -

H2014F11 8280 StBIN AR BTE R
BetE EREE2RNBEREHNEMGER2EET
MEFEDBRARATRONELN BEENE
RUTRSE: () ZADRMKELBEREZ
2H B EITER S PT B IRERFI R HE 5 (i) &
ARRMNEERHBEREZZNH R ALE
X AP BRI TR HER (i)
ROEE - REUBREZZOAINREBNEHRE
T+ N\BRERE-

ERHERENERESMIBEA (BNE2014
F11HB28HEs +F) £B XA ETHE-B
REBRENTEHEREFEETLNIFHE
MRS AR ARESH AR BREKRE
R BHESt+F 2B TRIBFRIEZRX
MR

RAEIBE N EARBETERE B RTEN
BREEREAADBRRETHEMBERES
BIOAEREMBEREME TEITHNRMDEHR
S EREEEEHBEREREEITEME
FABBEHTRNNI10% (IRt RBEERER
BT ER B S) 2 BI50,000,0008% °

KEERBEFEEMERBFERETMER
1 o JR2022F [ 2021F 12831 H » fEF IR 5

B AR DUEN R B HERRAE L IREAVEF] -

RREERBRAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the
Company was approved by the shareholders on 13
November 2014.

A summary of the Scheme is set out below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 November 2014. Under the Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make an
offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company at a subscription price being not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant and (iii) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
completion of the global offering and the capitalisation issue
(but taking no account of any shares issued upon over-
allotment), being 50 million shares.

No share options were granted under the Scheme during
the current and prior years. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, there were no outstanding options granted under the
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31.

BIRSHE

AEBERRBEEREATES (MaEs) 5
2 EEBHIEH B2000FE1281 H AW 2 @M%
RBEEAEMEROI2EB—LBEEZERTEANE
BErzaRwstE AHAEBERES MMM - RiEA
Feitd EXHHEESRESERMAAREZS%
ZEBRZAEER (ZRRESEABERARK
) o5 HBRA L LRA30,000/8 7T o @A 5
SNHRNFE T REFME

REBBRRTE RN AEBTAREESREE
ATETNRETEILEERMA - FREARBEH
FE HARIRETE

REAEE AEBSZNREBEHRRBEY
2,307,000 7T (20214F : 2,575,0005 7T) © A4E
FE MR W R A (R S IR A v o

31.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF Scheme
operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong and
makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant income
is HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$2,307,000 (2021: HK$2,575,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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32. ZRBEZMBRRRK B

@ FREZHEBERRER

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(a) Staterment of financial position of the Company

2022 2021
Vo= FAET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current asset
KRB AR Z’E Investment in a subsidiary 21,899 61,198
MENEE Current assets
TR Prepayments 597 565
FE W By /8 A~ B BR R Amounts due from subsidiaries 35(d) - 62,459
AJUg[EFR 18 Tax recoverable - )
RITERAERRE Cash at banks and on hand 1,176 621
1,773 63,647
mEaE Current liabilities
FEST R IE K EAM (T BR Accruals and other payables 2,040 1,427
FES R IE Tax payable 39 =
FEAT B /8 A Bl BR R Amounts due to subsidiaries 35(d) 1,124 1,124
3,203 2,551
wE (Al EEFE Net current (liabilities)/assets (1,430) 61,096
BEFE Net assets 20,469 122,294
E EQUITY
[N Share capital 28 50,245 50,245
BN Reserves 32(b) (29,776) 72,049
TR AR KA Total equity 20,469 122,294
REES=Z On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXHE Ayl
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES

Executive Director
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Executive Director



a b

e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022512H31H LEEE For the year ended 31 December 2022

<

32. KXATIZHFR IR EE @ 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

b) FEAEEE

(b) Reserves of the Company

REBAN,
IR HE (REHE18) HEt

Retained

earnings/

Share (accumulated
premium losses) Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
12021 F1B1H At 1 January 2021 145,335 43,979 189,314
FERBE Loss for the year = (117,265) (117,265)

R2021E12831B K At 31 December 2021 and

2022%181H 1 January 2022 145,335 (73,286) 72,049
FEEIE Loss for the year - (101,825) (101,825)
2022512831H At 31 December 2022 145,335 (175,111) (29,776)
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33. B ATE 33. SUBSIDIARIES
12022512831 H » KRB T 5 & A 5 % As at 31 December 2022, the Company had direct or
EEEyREED ZE N EEMABREA indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
3 HEFBEAW T ¢ are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of

which are set out as follows:

AR
REAHE =g BETRBERAE FEfL B TEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
H# ik
Directly Indirectly
RREEEEEERAT HEEFREE 3370250814 100% - REER
& $£337,025% T
EGL Management Group Company BVI 337,025 shares Investment holding
Limited totalling United States dollar
(‘US$") 337,025
RREKTHERAT ) 3,315,000 & @A - - 100% HREKITE BHTERK
A3,315,00087T BT E R RS
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERITH (HX) BRAA &E 221 BBk - 100% IRMHEANLIERTEBH
BH21ET TEMREBNMERTHEEER
KB
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products
and services in Japan
BRERTHERAS i 550,0008% & 3B > - 100% BEER
&H550,000E 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
totalling HK$550,000
RREIRITH (2P BRAR B 1,800,000 7 - 100% REKTEBRTERK
BB MR T AR 2 o R RS
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT
1,800,000 Products and ancillary travel

related products and services
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33. B AT &= 33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

SERAIL
GIEL =i BEITRBERA FEfh B TBREY
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
=t EibEd
Directly Indirectly
R ITH (RY) BRA R HE BRERAE - 100%  FRAREGR AR R AN iRTE
AR 3,850,0007¢
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local
Company Limited* (‘RMB”) 3,850,000 package tours in the PRC
FREER (BX) ERAT HEAWRES 1008K5 - 100% REZR
&31,000E 7T
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
g Zpang. S. S* H& 475815 - 80% R ERREMKESLRE
(T Zipang ) ££23,750,0008
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S* Japan 475 shares Provision of travel bus services in
(“Zipang”) totalling JPY23,750,000 Japan
RREER ) BRAE EREAREE 100RRH - 100% K&K
&31,000E 7T
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
FREREEEERAT HEAWRES 1008K5 - 100% REZR
BH100ETT
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$100
EGL Market Company Limited A 1REER - 100% REBRZER
e
EGL Market Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of goods in Hong Kong
totalling HK$1
EXSERBRAT HEAWRES RG> - 100% REER
CEIET
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding

totalling US$1
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33. B AT @ 33. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

G AT
RE%ATE gEmet BEITRBERE FEfLBR1E TEREHR
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
E#% ik
Directly Indirectly
EXSRERRAH BE 1REEk - 100% KBEER
BHRIET
Ebisu Investment Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited* SE:S BRRRA - 100% %A HEREEFRBE
10,000,0008
Ebisu Growth Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
East Global Limited* SE:S BRRRA - 100% %A HEREEFRBE
10,000,0008
East Global Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
RREES (BF) E@ERAT HEEBRES 1RRH - 100% REEK
BRIET
EGL Trading (Japan) Group BVI 1 share Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$1
BREES (BF) BRAH &E 1REEk - 100% #RERXZERERERRS
BHRIET
EGL Trading (Japan) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Provision of handling services for

Company Limited

- PRI AL T 5 )

i BHBEEREMNINEEERE

HZE2021F12B31HIEEE - mMEE2ENEA
I EREES (BN EEERAIREREEZ
5 (A4 BRABFMARIL o

BENBARNRSHARETEARERES

totalling HK$1

*

trading of goods in Japan

English name for identification purpose only

registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the

PRC law

During the year ended 31 December 2021, EGL Trading
(Japan) Group Company Limited and EGL Trading (Japan)

Company Limited, two wholly-owned subsidiaries, were

incorporated.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the reporting period.
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34.

35.

FFIERG o

34.

TR EREBEFENR2022F12831BAH
2,626,000/ 75 (20214 : 1,603,000 7T) * &%

Zipang & (b JIE RS #E 2 o

ZWNBABNIFEREDRRDBLAEK -

FRERRS

ey

@ REFEEAMETS

35.

FERGEEUFRENEMEDSERBEZRS
MEERSN HBERETZRBUWT

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The net liabilities of non-controlling interests as at 31
December 2022 were approximately HK$2,626,000 (2021:
HK$1,603,000) which were attributable to the non-controlling
interest of Zipang.

The non-controlling interests of the subsidiary are considered
to be immaterial.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) Significant related party transactions during the

year
2022 2021
k23 FET FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
SO FHEEARZEE Rental paid to a related company
— K817 - Great Port () 8,731 8,784
BEADEREEN Interest expense incurred on loans from
MEFAEZ a related company
—KRE17 — Great Port (i) 17,002 7,847
FIRMERITE BEMITERK  Costs charged by associates regarding
BN M AR1T AR A S A AR S the provision of package tours, FIT
HEEARWEZ &R Products and ancillary travel related
products and services
—EGLH4B - EGL Okinawa (il 12 =
—EGLEE[E - EGL Korea (i) 349 -
—BB# — Niti Niti Travel (i) 4 _
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35. FEARS & 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
@ REFEEEAMEHT S B (@) Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)
BiaE - Notes:
(i) ST FREABEBAT ZHEES IR EEER 0} Rental expenses paid to a related company were
BREMREAEEHHERAEAG S ZHAE conducted in the normal course of business and in
R IR FETT accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered

into between the Group and the related company.

(i) ZERSTWERNERZEZIRTE T (i) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

KATNTERTRIE - BEE - RELLEM The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
FUTNARETZESURFAEARETZ Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
i 18 o have equity interests in Great Port.

bR EXPIIEEE N RAFRIERFE Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
NEREE > N QB EEMKE R B to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
AU ARNDESZEEEARGZEE a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
H#o material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.
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35. FIERRS @

) FIELEE (b)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Loans from a related company

Loans from a related company represented six loans
B due to Great Port at as 31 December 2022. The details

WRFAT . of the six loans were shown as below:
J=E /9L E&ieEE #A wE =EEM B F=E
Loan Loan Principal Final Interest
number drawdown date amount repayment date rate
1 202083H27H  80,000,0007 7T 2026FE181H ZE
27 March 2020  HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 Interest free
2 202048H27H  80,000,0007 7T 2026FE181H Z2E
27 August 2020  HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 Interest free
3 20205 12H29H  40,000,0007 7T 2026F1H1H FHEB—EA
FARITRZERS
01.5%
29 December 2020 HK$40,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR
plus 1.5% per annum
4 20214818 40,000,000 7T 2026F1H1H FHEB—EA
FARITRZERS
01.5%
1 April 2021 HK$40,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR
plus 1.5% per annum
5 2021%11H29H  80,000,0007 7T 2026%F1H1H FHEB—EA
FARITRZERS
f1.65%
29 November 2021 HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR
plus 1.65% per annum
6 20224%F6H2H 30,000,000 7T 2023%F5H831H FHEB—EA

2 June 2022

HK$30,000,000

31 May 2023

BEBITEIZERS
701.65%

One-month HIBOR
plus 1.65% per annum
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35. FERRXS &

b) FHELGE )

R2020F12831H F—F£HEREM
BF_EMBELERRE=EHEHFERE
MEZERERGERMOERREEE
R2021FE3B18H » KBTI ZE ER HE
FIElNZEREBERRDIZEL =M%
E-FARRBEREBERRERAHEZ=
FEMEHEREST At tE=FEFHRN
2021435 18HE#& ILHERR ©

IE=F 8/ MN2021F3818A URENA
NEBEEEMERAMEREE BABR
FREAHL8% - =FEERNRATEEA
NABEZEEEA4938,5679,0007 7T
HRAERENREZFPHREERZA L
—E£E5RN2021F3H18H R EMDEA
FERBEE

FNEEBEHERRBHEMNESE B
BERFEN XL 4% - FOERESERBHR
THAYERIBZANBEZEERALY
5,033,00078 7T » R AR BRI T
BREELRRA

FEREMERERIZBHMRAE BA
BERFHNEEA% - FREMEHERNAK

THRAVNRERIZAANABEZERRAN
10,272,00078 7T > M AR RN Em
WRRBERRA

FNEER ERNAEIRE BR20235FE5
H31HE=E -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

®)

Loans from a related company (Continued)

The first related party loan, the second related party
loan and the third related party loan with repayment
on demand clause were classified as current liabilities
as at 31 December 2020. On 18 March 2021, Great
Port issued 3 waiver letters in respect of demand
clauses stated in those loan agreements respectively.
As the waiver of the repayment on demand clause
was considered as a significant modification of these 3
loans, these 3 loans were derecognised as at 18 March
2021.

These 3 loans were re-recognised as new loan
liabilities at their fair values as at 18 March 2021,
using the effective interest rate of 4.8% per annum.
The difference of the original principal amounts and
the fair values of these 3 loans of approximately
HK$38,579,000 was recognised as a deemed capital
contribution from the shareholders in equity. These 3
loans were reclassified as non-current liabilities from 18
March 2021 onwards.

The fourth related party loan was carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate of 4.4% per
annum. The difference of the principal amount and
the fair value of the fourth related party loan at initial
recognition of approximately HK$5,033,000 was
recognised as deemed capital contribution from the
shareholders in equity.

The fifth related party loan was carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate of 5.1% per
annum. The difference of the principal amount and
the fair value of the fifth related party loan at initial
recognition of approximately HK$10,272,000 was
recognised as deemed capital contribution from the
shareholders in equity.

The sixth related party loan is unsecured and repayable
on 31 May 2028.
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35. FEARZ @ 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
© FEEBEASZFH (c) Compensation of key management personnel
KEE EFREMTEEEAEHREZ The remuneration of directors and other members of
FENUOF key management during the year was as follows:
2022 2021
FAT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ZHiEEEH Short-term employee benefits 6,755 5,034
BEE BB A Post-employment benefits 187 162
6,942 5,196
@) JEYFETHTE L\ Gl BR 2 75 2 HE 4 - (@ The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
BERIFEKEE - unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demanad.
36. B AEKIE 36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
EHREAERNEEYX BEELSENELREX Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure of
ZENAEWT acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the Group

are as follows:

2022 2021

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEETABREE Contracted but not provided for 454 790
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37. EEREERE 37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

rERZESEERREE

@ HERAEEFEKEZED UFEBRR
RAVE O3 Ko 2 BAth =50 & 2K A a5

b) XFHAEENRERER; K

© mMRAEERREEENRIES-

FEERBEOBRESTRREFTNGE FBAER
Bt BAEN RtEBEREABMNELR
RBERBEMERER S Rl AE AR IS E
ERER LURFREAGHENRREIRERIER
Ko REBMERAKBEMNERNREER

AEREEEAGHE  TREBEEERTHEEH
HREEZARSREHETHE - BER R
BEAER AEEHRRKTRRZKRE S EIFLH
AE -BORREEBES BITHR - HEEHN
HEBELURILE

198 H=FEsERARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows and capital expenditures, and potential strategic
investment opportunities. The Group does not currently
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.
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37. ESRAMRERE @

1R2022F %2021 512831 HB B EFRH KR

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The net debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2022 and

WEEEYT : 2021 were as follows:
2022 2021
FET TEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
&% (Wa0) Debt (note(i)) 720,282 740,894
BRI ERRERFERE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (204,300) (130,133)
FETE Net debt 515,982 610,761
PRERME T (B aE () Equity (note(ij) 23,095 123,897
B ETEEH R ER L Net debt-to-equity ratio 2,234% 493%

Kzt - Notes:

(i)

(i

BEHEERTER HEAGRBEAREMR
HEF B0 BB 5E25 ~ 155235(b) ©

REEDEIFEA A RBER AEMGRE R
o

(i) Debt comprised bank borrowings, lease liabilities and loans

from a related company as detailed in notes 25, 15 and 35(b)

respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.
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38. HIFERAEEIE

FEFTAZEFBEETERENX - EE R
B INERE EFEEHEEAUDTREIE
EMEEFEBFEE SRR (BEFEK
SNEEXRFLEEAET)  FERABRABES
B —fRME > AEE 5L AR E EREFRT R
B o

@ FIEEfE
AEEARSHERTERAELNTER
B hkREEBIRITERMEENIREREZ
) 2 & B o

pR2022%  AEBNRERFER KA BME
MZBE LG LUBEH) B M A o | i
EEXD2EMEEEREAERZRERE
RAMETE - F Rz UK PREREE
DA ERA R o

AEENRTEFHANBITERNIRTS
BHERRHMARREEREZFREAR -
AEREERAHAEEEERAIRITERT
REBLEAER EHRFRBRITERE
e BT HEIAEE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign

currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s

business. The board of directors meets periodically to

analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s

exposure to market risk (including principal changes in

interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and

liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative

strategy regarding risk management.

@

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 2022, the Group aimed to maintain a suitable
proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order
to stabilise interest costs. Interest rate hedging ratio is
determined after taking into consideration of the market
trend and the Group’s cash flow pattern. Interest
rate swap was employed to hedge exposures or to
modify the interest rate characteristics of the Group’s
borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors
of the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.
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38. M ERERE @

@

(b)

FIEE i (4%)

18 1) 52 4 470 886 10 9 Rk /L 5 % 1T B A H th
AEFHRARRFAE A AEENFEEES
B Rt BRI 38 I149734,00078 7T
(20214 : 197,000 7T)  BRE 2 FI &
FHESNEMIEOBESE-

MR A% AEFHENEE TERE
ERRAI R M A IO A BB ST o

EERER
EERBE—BEMIAZXZHEFER
FERRTEZBITESEERNAEREK
M BIRZ AR

AEEERZEEEERREIERENH
EEERRETRELARTEE  ERNIEK
SHABRZEMEEZREE (WK
38(NiEt) o

FEERBERE S RHEMBUERE R
EXEERERBEET FAEEKEERA
FRAENXZHFRERBEEELUEEZ
REHFHSIBRZEMNERNEERR &
B RITERTFHRNEE R AR K
BEXERT - cEBUTREEAMERN
EERE-

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

@

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 5% at the beginning of the year and all other
variables were held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s loss for the year and accumulated
losses by approximately HK$734,000 (2021:
HK$197,000). The assumed changes have no impact
on the other components of equity.

The increase or decrease by 5% represents directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the end of next reporting
period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
38(f).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Japan. The Group
has no other significant exposure to credit risk.
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38. MFERAEEIE @

b 1FERLE @
AEEEREBY B REERFINRAT
BAREIED A FEMEEBBRFLEE
ZERAFTFHABEZBUBRRBERA
HHEERERR AEE—ERERHE
FRERANEMEEHEENE S BURET
EFEER -BERWERZEREEBRE
DBDE2ERFABETNENCTHREREND
MeTBHEEBET2ERAEEEREHTA
EEBUERENN —REEH QA BRI 5
MEEEER A ERREERR B
FEWRIS 191 BB 2 IREC ERIBH B E
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N RERBRZAMEEBRIEAERKR
BRrmEFET EEDEIESHER -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

)

Crediit risk (Continueq)

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECLs provision for all trade
receivables. The Group always measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables are
estimated by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and current market condition in relation to
each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also incorporated
forward-looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables. To measure the ECLs,
the trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due
according to the ageing as disclosed in note 19.

Expected loss rate of trade receivables are assessed to
be 0.5%, 1%, 5% and 10% for the amounts less than
30 days, 60 days, 90 days past due and over 90 days
past due respectively. The directors of the Company
considered the loss allowance provision for trade
receivables was immaterial during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The Group takes into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates of
counterparties, and concludes that credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding other receivables
is insignificant. The Group has assessed that other
receivables do not have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and risk of default is
insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs method and
no loss allowance provision was recognised for both
years.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(b)

Crediit risk (Continuea)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. As the Group
has sustained net current liabilities as mentioned in
note 2(b), the Group relies on internally generated
funds and credit facilities from a related company and
bank borrowings as significant sources of liquidity to
enable the Group to operate as a going concern.
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38. MIBRAMEIER @ 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
© REELREE @) (c)  Liquidity risk (Continuea)
TREYBRESHALAEFBIETESHE R The following tables show the remaining contractual
ETEsHmafGREXRERERESRE (8 maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
EUEHFA R IRE HHHRTH = (W0 Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
FE) FFstENFEMT) SEHMNREGELN financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
EmBlAERANERNBELNNEEHE flows (including interest payments computed using

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

Lk —EhR —ENE WENL
REE REREAR JREX BFEEME BFERILE BENE

Total Within Over Over

contractual one year one year two years
Carrying undiscounted oron but within but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years

TEn TEn Thn ThEn Thn Thn
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000

2022

El 2 Non-derivatives:

BAEMR Trade payables 15,582 15,582 15,582 = = =
st ERE MR Accruals and other payables 46,786 46,786 46,786 - - -
ERBEARRR Amount due to an assaciate 20 20 20 - - -
BEAFER Loans from a related company 313,918 350,000 30,000 = 320,000 -
RITER Bank borrowings 365,366 386,832 225,295 7,603 22,650 131,284
HEaRk Lease liabilities 40,998 41,601 38,746 2,855 - -

782,670 840,821 356,429 10,458 342,650 131,284
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38. MFERAEEIE @

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

© mEELEE @ ()  Liquidlity risk (Continued)
BNRMR —EbR —ENME  WENLS
REE Renenn FREK EFBEME BTBBRE RENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted oron but within but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
TER TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2021
ElZhiea Non-derivatives:
BRREAR Trade payables 5,220 5,220 5,220 = = =
st BREMEMR Accruals and other payables 23,506 23,506 23,506 - - -
FEHEARER Amount due to an associate 12 12 12 = = =
BEAFERN Loans from a related company 272,874 320,000 = = 320,000 =
RITEM Bank borrowings 420,118 426,841 241,479 8,059 24,178 153,125
HEaRE Lease liabilities 47,902 49,392 41,297 7,107 988 =
769,632 824,971 311,514 15,166 345,166 153,125
@ SMEE LR (@)  Foreign currency risk

SNERBIE-BERIAZARNEBENHA
AR 2 8 (K] 51 B B R A Eh T 8% 4 B
Z KR o

7S £ B K 2 A IS R B o 5% 5 R B 2l B LT
REBERBNINEE R 2 EIRMEIRT
B BRTER RES LIRS SR
THBERMRBEEE Z W > UK B
[E1E T8 R B B B IS B R AR 75 2 AR 75 Al A
UEEmEEET NEAEE ZEEDN
26.7% (20214 : 6.2%) Z A4S £90.7%
(20214 1 0.7%) ZWR U EBERE
HINREEME 2 B EHE -
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Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours, FIT Products, travel bus services,
ancillary travel related products and services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and ancillary hotel related services and sale of
merchandises business in currencies other than the
Group entities’ functional currency. Approximately
26.7% (2021: 6.2%) of costs and approximately 0.7%
(2021: 0.7%) of the Group’s revenue are denominated
in currencies other than the Group entities’ functional
currency for the year.
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38. M ERERE @
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(@

Forejgn currency risk (Continueq)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the Group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022 2021
THT FHB7T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets

H JPY 64,369 46,659
AR RMB 4,645 3,811
69,014 50,470

afE Liabilities
H JPY 8,447 24,293
AR RMB 19 -
8,466 24,293
SIEEFE BB R INEE R ~ 2555 R| The management monitors foreign currency exposure

SMERFE - BEEEEHIFTER HERER
EREEHNESE ZIINERR -

RCRPITTEBITE R R EM > EFR
HAEEMRPITZINERBRIEAEK

by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy to
require group entities to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their respective functional currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.
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38. BAFSE

S E R ()
TREINRAEAEENBRERREKZEKR
Rgz MEER SIBP]REEE) KAEE
ZEEBBEARRSBERAMERE Z BN
H-HREDMBEUNERXEHINES
2N EBSHENTERRT ZHE
fRe TXEHXRTBTRBEMEEAERN
EiRR D R E A m AVIE AN o WIS BT R
HREBERE IBEERAEMEREE
EEERTE TREFRKSBM - INEE
KRB BERANATIEEEASERN
MR KREEERBEINEESE
S fEH AR AT

=R @

@ @

T SRED T IRE RS FEAINEE
RKZREBDLEFREE  WRNBEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s loss for the year and accumulated losses in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances
is in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss and an increase in
other equity where the HK$ strengthens against the
relevant currency. For a weakening of the HK$ against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss and other equity, and the
balances below would be negative. The 5% change in
foreign exchange rate is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign

1RIFAE . exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year:
2022 2021
FEFERREE FEFERRFEE
(g /Ed (g /o
(Increase)/decrease (Increase)/decrease
in loss for the year and in loss for the year and
accumulated losses accumulated losses
=i AR = AR
JPY RMB JPY RMB
FTHET THET THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
ExEs) ! Changes in exchange rate:
BT RINEFES% HK$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (2,335) (193) (934) (159)
BT RIMERE5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 2,335 193 934 159
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(e)

Fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

hierarchy:
F—#4: MHEBEENEEREZEMSEZ Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
B CREHAE) ; markets for identical assets or liabilities;
FETHR . BT E—RFIOEZHREIN Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included
ZEEAB I EREH AN within Level 1 that are observable for the
B oAERE BINER) ez asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
ErRBEER) ; K& or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
F=4h . BESNBEZWASRIELIERK Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are
EBEEBEZhmREHESE CRaE not based on observable market data
R ABIR) © (unobservable inputs).
20224 20214
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEMEEE Non-current asset B
TTEERMTA Derivative financial instrument Level 2 1,154 533

B E2022F &2021FE12831HIEEE &
4R > RS SIE SRR RS o

MM RAABEREEBRFT RAHE
MERIEHENTHTNEREETR
B RBEMARRUEERSOERGIHREE
SANPACT

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there was no transfer between levels.

The fair value of interest rate swap is the estimated

amount that the Group would receive or pay to

terminate the swaps at the end of the reporting period,

taking into account observable interest rates and the

current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.
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38. MFERAEEIE @

IR & D2 T EERE G E () Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

@
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

category

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETMEE Financial assets
HEEM ATt E L Financial assets measured
TREE at amortised cost:
B 5 EWER Trade receivables 6,766 3,210
51 K H U BR Deposits and other receivables 15,345 13,725
FE W Bt 2 B BR R Amount due from an associate 5,542 6,290
EIRRITIERR Pledged bank deposits 8,135 8,326
RITERKEFRE Cash at banks and on hand 204,300 130,133
240,088 161,684
EEREANEETA Financial asset designated at FVTPL:
BN EMEE .
MERIASH Interest rate swap contract 1,154 533
TREE Financial liabilities
BEEMAStE Y Financial liabilities measured at
THEE amortised cost:
B 5 AR Trade payables 15,582 5,220
FEST R IE K HHAFE (T BR Accruals and other payables 46,786 23,506
FE(T B S A B BRFR Amount due to an associate 20 12
REANTERN Loans from a related company 313,918 272,874
HRIT AR Bank borrowings 365,366 420,118
HE&E Lease liabilities 40,998 47,902
782,670 769,632

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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39.

MEBEESFMEEERZHER

TR AEERELTIMELEREIH ZF

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

<

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

15 . arising from financing activities:
TR/
RITHER HESR (BE) HERER
Bank Lease Derivative ~ Loans from a
borrowings liabilities  liability/(asset)  related party
(Hr3t25) (Ht15) (Mazer)  (Ha23sm)
(note 25) (note 15) (note 27) (note 35(b))
TEL TET TEr TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2021E1B1H At 1 January 2021 476,796 59,288 642 200,000
BERSRELEE Changes from financing cash flows:
BENE BN Advance from a related company = = = 120,000
BERTER Repayment of bank borrowings (10,427) = = =
EfHERENESHH Principal element of lease rental paid - (17,634) = =
BENHEERENH S Interest element of lease rental paid = (1,940) = =
BAFE Interest paid (3,888) - (352) (1,089)
REBERERELEEE Total changes from financing
cash flows (14,315) (19,574) (352) 118,911
[ERAE Exchange adjustments (46,769) 48) 42) -
HtnEEe Other changes:
FERX Interest expense 4,715 1,940 352 7,847
BIIERARZEE Effect on modification of loan payment (309) = = =
RE Addition - 226 - -
ZILHE Termination of lease = (663) = =
HEBTIZRE Effect of lease modification = 9,803 = =
e Bk Gain on rental concession - (3,070) - =
RAEEES Fair value change - - (1,133) -
BRBEEZA Deemed capital contribution = = = (53,884)
Hhes e Total other changes 4,406 8,236 (781) (46,037)
20214125315 At 31 December 2021 420,118 47,902 (533) 272,874
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390. MEREFMELXBRZHK® 39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
TR AEERS IHMELSEEEE) =5 The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
1% . arising from financing activities:
RITER HE&E RBEFEM
Bank Lease Loans from a
borrowings liabilities  related party
(Miaz2s) (Hiat15)  (Waz3sm))
(note 25) (note 15) (note 35(b))
TAT FTAT FTAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
120221 H1H At 1 January 2022 420,118 47,902 272,874
MERSRELEE . Changes from financing cash flows:
BN BB Advance from a related company - - 30,000
RITEFAEHIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 2,000 - =
ERIBTER Repayments of bank borrowings (7,185) - -
ENHEEHRENAEESD Principal element of lease rental paid - (16,624) -
ENAERESNA S Interest element of lease rental paid - (1,307) -
BAFE Interest paid (3,395) - (5,958)
MERESRELHLR Total changes from financing
cash flows (8,580) (17,931) 24,042
(R AR Exchange adjustments (50,029) - -
HtEEE . Other changes:
FERY Interest expense 4,086 1,307 17,002
BIERIRZ T E Effect on modification of loan payment (229) - -
hE Addition - 4,440 -
RIERE Termination of lease - (4,567) -
G CHPAL Effect of lease modification - 11,691 -
HEE R Gain on rental concession - (1,844) -
Hit2 84858 Total other changes 3,857 11,027 17,002
12022512831H At 31 December 2022 365,366 40,998 313,918
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40.

IR

RBEFEE AEET REZEREHBEERET
EXRCo-mRRERTIREXENAEENEE
G > A E B MY 4 (NPT 8 2 A SR B K ik i
BTMEHAAERA T Mg st BER > 122022451
B1RREN SR AHIEBCHNAE A 1288
NFREEFEEEERER RN EHRESE
R EERRE—BBEANRAMA R RS
Rik#EEBTHEEANEE AR RMNZBEE T K
FOARERREAFEBEPES 75,843,000
TR EAE BRI o

MESTBCREEEMEA  ERMNEFEFELR
B AREBERRECTHNIEHAERIAFER
BEEKREESE WEEHE2021F12831H
IFFENGERBERRAERAVGR TR o

40. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In prior years, the Group did not choose to not capitalise
leases which are short-term leases. With effect from 1
January 2022, due to a change of lease models under
business recovery from the pandemic, the Group adopted
a new accounting policy for short-term leases of office
equipment and travel buses as set out in note 4(f), where
the non-cancellable period of the lease is 12 months or
less and do not contain a purchase option, the short-term
lease exemption applies. The short-term lease exemption
is applied consistently to all underlying assets relating to
office equipment and travel buses only. As a result of the
adoption of this accounting policy, the Group recognised
HK$5,843,000 of short term lease expenses in profit or loss
during the year.

The new accounting policy has been adopted retrospectively,
but there was no impact on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and its
opening balance as there were no short-term lease for office
equipment and travel buses recognised as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in prior year.
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Glossary

2023 FERFHEERS
2023 AGM

A EIE4mE]
Articles of Association
BEE

Board

RBEERRHS
BVI

¥ EATA
CG Code

QB B R B E R

Company or EGL Holdings

COVID-19
COVID-19

=

Director(s)
RREIRITH

EGL Tours

12 B8
Evergloss

BT
FIT

BHTE®
FIT Products

Great Port

AABBERRBFEANG

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

RABINERESTNKET REFAESZAEA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

RBEBRES
British Virgin Islands

EHRBIM SR 4PR E R B E B A PR
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

REEZERBRRAE (BRMHRSE 0 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

2019 IR ImH R
coronavirus disease 2019

KNABIEE
the director(s) of the Company

REERITHBERAS AREIZEREERE AR
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REEEERFRAR ARRZEKEE (TEREFRBERG)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

B BHKRE
free independent travellers

BHRTEZERERKE TR

FIT packages and individual travel elements

REITBERRB Y1TES AIRXEAEE - HEE2 AL - ZHSEERFTESTX
T) 2B A

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors (namely Mr. Yuen

Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun)
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KER
Group
BT
HKD/HK$

ERMBRSER]
HKFRSs

=]
JPY

BE
Kwok Lai

I BR
Likang

LERA
Listing Rules

fEEpa

Model Code

BT
MOP

HEBEOR B REREE

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot

Spring Hotel

KR DF BIE
Osaka Hinode Hotel

KRB REWBAE
the Company and its subsidiaries

BT BBEEE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEESHAAFEMRN(EBHBRESER])
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

BHE HERZEEE
Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

BEEZERERAR BEEEREZ—
Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

NERBRAR BEEEREZ—
Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

WX PreR s LR Al
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

EHRAIMER10PR SR E T ANE R ETE ST 7 NIRESTEY
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

BFITT O RFTNEE B
Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH4B:2D¥ B RERAIS) » ZNEE
AABEEZE AL

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH#B1D ¥ 38 R EBHEE) , the Group’s
second-owned hotel in Japan

Osaka Hinode Hotel (KBxiRDFIEE) > REBN B AER 2 BSOS
Osaka Hinode Hotel (KFr3EDFAEIE), the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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Glossary

RE
PRC

55 M EIE IR A
SFO

&

Share(s)

FER ST 3
Share Option Scheme

e
Shareholder(s)

TR
sq.ft.

75K
sg.m.

B2 PR
Stock Exchange

REE

Year

thE A R F1E
the People’s Republic of China

&5 R BRG] (BA LB HEE71E)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

PN/NSIL )
the share(s) of the Company

AT B2014F 11 BEERMBI B IR 5T 8

share option scheme adopted by the Company since November 2014

e SEST= PN
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

FHR
square feet

7K
square meter(s)

BEMERXBMBERAF
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B ZE2022512831HIEEFE
the year ended 31 December 2022
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